

1 STATE OF VERMONT
2 GREEN MOUNTAIN CARE BOARD

3 ONECARE VERMONT 2021 BUDGET HEARING

4
5
6 Hearing held before the Green Mountain
7 Care Board via Microsoft Teams on
8 October 28, 2020 beginning at 9:30 a.m.

9 BOARD MEMBERS

10 Kevin Mullin, Chair
11 Maureen Usifer
12 Jessica A. Holmes, Ph.D
13 Robin Lunge, JD, MHCDS
14 Tom Pelham

15 STAFF MEMBERS

16 Alena Berube, Director of Health Systems Policy
17 Marisa Melamed, Associate Director of Health Care
18 Policy
19 Susan Barrett, Esquire, Executive Director
20 Abigail Connolly

21 OFFICE OF THE HEALTH CARE ADVOCATE

22 Michael Fisher
23 Vermont Legal Aid, Inc.
24 7 Court Street, PO Box 606
25 Montpelier, VT 05601-0606

26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780
781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824
825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841
842
843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870
871
872
873
874
875
876
877
878
879
880
881
882
883
884
885
886
887
888
889
890
891
892
893
894
895
896
897
898
899
900
901
902
903
904
905
906
907
908
909
910
911
912
913
914
915
916
917
918
919
920
921
922
923
924
925
926
927
928
929
930
931
932
933
934
935
936
937
938
939
940
941
942
943
944
945
946
947
948
949
950
951
952
953
954
955
956
957
958
959
960
961
962
963
964
965
966
967
968
969
970
971
972
973
974
975
976
977
978
979
980
981
982
983
984
985
986
987
988
989
990
991
992
993
994
995
996
997
998
999
1000

I N D E X

1		
2		<u>Page</u>
3	Board and Staff Questions/Comments	66
4	HCA Questions	171
5	Public Comment	
6	Susan Aranoff	185
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		

1 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Good morning, and welcome
2 to the Green Mountain Care Board. My name is Kevin
3 Mullin, Chair of the Board, and we're about to start
4 the meeting. The first item on the agenda is the
5 Executive Director's report, Susan Barrett.

6 MS. BARRETT: Good morning, everyone. I have
7 a few scheduling -- so the November board schedule will
8 be up on our website by the end of this week, so take a
9 look at that when you get a chance. In terms of open
10 public comment, we have one current open public comment
11 period for the draft white papers for regulatory
12 alignment. That period ends on, that official period
13 ends on October 30th. So I wanted to remind folks
14 about that.

15 And then, in terms of the ACO budget, we will be
16 posting an official open public comment here. The
17 parameters are generally going to be that we will open
18 it today, obviously, and then the staff will be
19 presenting to the board on December 9th, and you'll
20 hear all about this from our staff introduction today,
21 but we're looking at likely to have the public comments
22 to be considered by the board and the staff by December
23 2nd. So we will post that, as I said, on our public
24 comment section of our website. And that is all I have
25 to announce today, Mr. Chair.

1 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Thank you. The next item
2 on the agenda are the minutes of Wednesday, October
3 21st. Is there a motion?

4 MS. USIFER: So moved.

5 MR. PELHAM: Second.

6 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: It's been moved and
7 seconded to approve the minutes of Wednesday, October
8 21st without any additions, deletions, or corrections.
9 Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all those in
10 favor, signify by saying "aye". Aye. Those opposed
11 signify by saying "nay".

12 Okay. We're going to move right into the purpose
13 of today's meeting, which is the OneCare Vermont budget
14 hearing, and to kick things off for us will be our
15 staff members, Alena Berube and Marisa Melamed.

16 MS. BERUBE: Good morning. Can everyone hear
17 me?

18 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: We can.

19 MS. BERUBE: Great. So I will share my
20 screen. Let me know when you can see it.

21 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: We can see it.

22 MS. BERUBE: Wonderful. So I am Alena
23 Berube, Director of Health Systems Policy, and with me
24 today I have Marisa Melamed, our Associate Director of
25 Health Care Policy, and we're just going to provide an

1 overview to this year's budget process. So today we'll
2 provide the overview. Then we'll hear OneCare's
3 presentation. There will be time for board questions,
4 Health Care Advocate questions, and public comment.
5 So, Marisa, you want to kick us off here?

6 MS. MELAMED: Can everyone hear me okay now?
7 Good morning. So this morning, as Alena said, we're
8 going to provide an overview of the ACO oversight
9 process, just to set us up for the hearing today and go
10 over what the board needs to consider as they hear
11 about and review the budget.

12 So the ACO oversight process is governed by 18
13 V.S.A. 9382 and Green Mountain Care Board Rule 5.0.
14 There are two parts to the process. There is
15 certification, which is a one-time certification that's
16 done following application, and then there is an
17 eligibility verification that is done annually. So we
18 will review OneCare's continued eligibility for
19 certification as part of the budget process as we have
20 done in past years since they were initially certified
21 in 2018.

22 The budget review occurs annually during the fall,
23 prior to the start of the program year, which is a
24 calendar year January 1st start date. However, payer
25 contracts and attribution is not finalized until the

1 spring of the budget year. So it's, they will --
2 there's a budget review and approval now prior to the
3 end of the year, and then we have the ACO come back in
4 the spring with final contracts and attribution to
5 review and finalize that.

6 So it's an ongoing process, which you can see in
7 the next slide here. So today, October 28th, we're at
8 the budget hearing. The guidance was issued over the
9 summer in July. We received a response to the
10 certification form September 1st, and we received and
11 have been reviewing the budget since October 1st. We
12 have also submitted an initial round of follow-up
13 questions to the ACO, which we are in the process of
14 reviewing, as well as all monitoring and other
15 reporting that's been submitted to us in preparation
16 for a staff analysis presentation with budget
17 recommendations for FY21, which will be December 9th.

18 We then have other meetings in December as needed
19 to review those recommendations, discuss them in the
20 public forum, and the board will be scheduled to vote,
21 ideally or tentatively, we have by December 23rd, but
22 it does need to be done by December 31st.

23 The board then issues a written budget order,
24 which will be finalized in late January or early
25 February, and, as previously noted, in March or April

1 or in the spring, there is a review of the final
2 attribution budget and contracts, and we do ongoing
3 monitoring and reporting against actual performance
4 throughout ongoing in 2021.

5 So the other thing to mention is that, this
6 process, we're still ongoing for 2020. So, at the same
7 time that we're reviewing 2021 information that's come
8 in for the upcoming budget, we're still reviewing
9 information that is coming through 2020, which, of
10 course, because of the public health emergency, some of
11 that has been extended as well. So everything ends up
12 rolling into each other.

13 Also, to note, as Susan said, there's a public
14 comment period, which we accept public comment
15 throughout this process. However, it's important to
16 note the dates that Susan mentioned. If you want a
17 comment that can be included in our remarks or
18 considered in time for our remarks on the 9th, you need
19 to submit that to the board by December 2nd, and,
20 again, if you have an additional comment or a comment
21 at a later date to be considered in the board's final
22 decision, that should be submitted by December 21st,
23 and that will be posted on our website as well.

24 All the materials are posted on the Green Mountain
25 Care Board website at the link that you see on the

1 slide, and, of course, if you have any questions about
2 materials or need help finding things, please contact
3 board staff, because there's a lot of things that are
4 submitted, and we want to make sure people can find
5 what they're looking for.

6 Next slide, so, just as an overview and a reminder
7 since we've been through this process a few times
8 already, the board, in deciding whether to approve or
9 modify the proposed budget of the ACO, needs to
10 consider the following under Rule 5, any benchmarks
11 established under Section 5.402 of the rule. There are
12 16 criteria listed in the statute, which I'm going to
13 do a brief, but not extensive, overview of, and as well
14 as any, you know, elements that need to be considered
15 under Vermont's All-payer Accountable Care Organization
16 Model Agreement between the State of Vermont and CMS,
17 as well as any other issues at the discretion of the
18 board.

19 In addition, the board considers all public
20 comment at this hearing or any other meetings to
21 collect information with OneCare as well. The Office
22 of the Health Care Advocate has a role in this hearing.
23 We will hear questions from them today, and they have
24 submitted written questions as well. The board takes
25 their input into consideration.

1 And then you can go to the next slide. So the
2 statutory criteria, again, the 16 listed, they're
3 extensive, and they are not simple or straightforward
4 to evaluate. So just some examples from last year of
5 conditions that are tied to that criteria. These are
6 the -- as the board is considering the criteria, the
7 conditions that end up in the budget order are the
8 things that the board has asked us to monitor in order
9 to allow us to evaluate whether that criteria is being
10 met.

11 So here are some examples of some things that we
12 had in last year's budget order. There are network
13 development strategies, scale target initiatives. We
14 have them report on program alignment, the
15 effectiveness of their population health investments,
16 how to make decisions about scaling up projects or
17 sunsetting projects. We're in the process of working
18 on an ACO performance dashboard. The ACO has submitted
19 a prototype to us, which is under review, and we are
20 also seeking comment or input on to look at variations
21 in cost and quality, trends and impact of the care
22 model on utilization to help make some of these metrics
23 more visible and available.

24 Other aspects of the budget order have been
25 measuring the value of the ACO investments over the

1 term of the agreement that there -- there's a budget
2 order condition that has one, asks OneCare to fund the
3 staff in Blueprint for Health at a certain dollar
4 amount, and, again, there are others. There are 22 in
5 total in the FY20 budget order, and some of these
6 things will probably persist and live on year or over
7 year or can be incorporated into our guidance. Some of
8 them are one-time things that the board may ask us to
9 look at.

10 You can go to the next slide. So the, the duties
11 and obligations of the ACO are also in the Rule 5.403.
12 There are 22 reporting criteria as part of the annual
13 guidance to help us collect everything. At each year
14 the board issues guidance. This year's guidance
15 included the following elements that you see on this
16 slide. So we have both narratives and data tables that
17 are submitted and also available on our website, and
18 this is the information that we have reviewed or need
19 to review to check against the criteria.

20 And I think the next slide is to you, Alena.

21 MS. BERUBE: Yeah. So thank you, Marisa. So
22 it is a very extensive process, and, as you mentioned,
23 the all-payer model is one of those considerations.
24 So, just as a reminder, you know, some of the key goals
25 of, and requirements of the all-payer model agreement,

1 the first is total cost of care, the five-year growth
2 target. So this is really about trying to get health
3 care cost growth to align with the growth of the
4 Vermont economy, which, at the time, was around 3.5
5 percent, but no higher than 4.3 percent. So this was
6 for the period of time of 2018 through 2022. So there
7 are certainly fluctuations in how we performed over the
8 last couple of years, especially now with Covid. So
9 this is something that we will continue to monitor and
10 report on.

11 The second is quality and population health
12 outcomes. So, to reiterate at a high level, you know,
13 there's a very detailed quality framework behind it,
14 but the population health outcomes that we chose as a
15 state were to increase access to primary care, reduce
16 deaths due to suicide and drug overdose, and lower the
17 prevalence of chronic disease. So these three criteria
18 kind of are the basis for, you know, the quality
19 framework behind it.

20 And then, finally, while, you know, a requirement
21 and kind of a theory of change is that scale is
22 important. So, if we're really going to affect total
23 cost of care and quality population health outcomes, we
24 really have to have as many providers involved as
25 possible and touch as many lives as we can in Vermont.

1 So we recently received a warning letter from CMMI
2 for not meeting our scale targets for two years in a
3 row and also, you know, for 2020, it's, which is kind
4 of, already kind of finalized in that sense, and we're
5 probably not -- you know, it's unlikely that we will
6 hit our scale targets again.

7 There's, you know, we understand the scale targets
8 were aggressive to begin with, but we believe that
9 there's some opportunity to continue to work here
10 together, and so we're working with our co-signatories
11 and getting stakeholder feedback to draft a response in
12 to send back in early December outlining some of these
13 strategies. So that might kind of be an element that
14 we see through this year's process.

15 The other thing to keep in mind is AHS is going to
16 issue a report on how we can improve our performance on
17 the all-payer model, and so looking really internally
18 and externally about all the theories of strategy, you
19 know, bigger than scale for how we can really move
20 forward together as a state. So we look forward to
21 that report and working with them to really kind of,
22 you know, usher us in the right direction.

23 Another thing to keep in mind is the proposal for
24 a subsequent agreement, which is required back to CMMI
25 by the end of 2021. So, if there is additional kind of

1 learning that we need to have before then to affect
2 that proposal, you know, I think that needs to happen
3 in the next couple of months, and we need to continue
4 engaging with our ACO and with providers to really
5 learn as much as we can about what's working or not
6 working or where there may be additional barriers
7 remaining that we can address as a state.

8 So I think that brings us to next steps.
9 So today we'll hear, as was mentioned, from the ACO,
10 you know, we're expecting a second round of questions
11 for any kind of loose ends to go out in December as
12 soon as we can compile those. You know, we're looking
13 forward to AHS's and the administration's all-payer
14 model improvement plan. And then, as Susan mentioned
15 and Marisa mentioned, our staff presentation on
16 preliminary recommendations is scheduled for December
17 9th.

18 The two remaining pieces that will also be, you
19 know, part of, maybe part of that presentation or
20 perhaps after -- it depends on timing -- is the 2021
21 benchmarks. So, given Covid and, you know, exogenous
22 factors, we're working to kind of come up with a method
23 that makes sense for this year. And then the Medicaid
24 Advisory Rate Case, we're looking for input from our
25 partners at DVHA, and then the tentative board vote we

1 expect by the end of December, as Marisa discussed
2 before.

3 So, with that, we will turn it over. There's some
4 reference slides if you should wish, but, if there are
5 no questions, Kevin, we can turn it over to OneCare.

6 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Before we get started with
7 the budget presentation, does any member of the board
8 have any questions for staff? Hearing none, at this
9 point, we're going to move to the budget presentation.
10 Before we do that, we'll need to have Sunnie, the court
11 reporter, swear in the witnesses. Vicki, who plans on
12 testifying on your behalf today?

13 MS. LONER: I do.

14 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Anyone else, though?

15 MS. LONER: Oh, Sara Barry and Tom Borys.

16 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay. If you could all be
17 sworn in together, that would be great.

18 MS. LONER: Sure.

19 VICTORIA LONER, SARA BARRY, and TOM BORYS, SR.

20 having been duly sworn to tell the truth,
21 testify as follows:

22 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Thank you. So, Vicki,
23 whenever you are ready, you can take it away. Will you
24 be presenting through the screen?

25 MS. LONER: Yes. Tom Borys, our Vice

1 President of Finance, will be putting up the screen.
2 So just give him a minute to do that, and I'll be
3 kicking this off, Vicki Loner, CEO of OneCare Vermont.

4 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay, great. We see the
5 screen.

6 MS. LONER: I love it when technology works
7 for us.

8 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Don't jinx it.

9 MS. LONER: I know, I know. I'm just waiting
10 for my screen to shut down any minute now. So thank
11 you very much for the opportunity to testify before you
12 today. I just want to take a minute to recognize that
13 2020 has, and continues to be, a very unprecedented
14 year for us all and as a nation, and I'm just so proud
15 of the work that Vermont has done during these really
16 hard times to come together and persevere.

17 You know, early on in the pandemic, many
18 speculated that we would lose a lot of ground in health
19 care reform just due to the tremendous operational and
20 financial strain and the uncertainty facing the
21 provider communities and front-line health care
22 providers. You know, strangely though, making lemonade
23 out of lemons, during the first three months when the
24 health care provider revenues were the most strained
25 and most depressed because patients were staying home

1 and staying safe, we recognized that the value-based
2 payments offered through OneCare allowed many health
3 care providers to actually persevere and keep their
4 doors open.

5 I'd like to point to Dr. Joe Hagan, who is a
6 pediatrician, independent pediatrician, who has been
7 very vocal to say that the PMPM money that their
8 practice has received really helped to keep them alive
9 when the patients weren't there. You know, we, in
10 Vermont and as a nation, I would say, cannot afford
11 practices to, to close. We need a more predictable
12 model that supports people in good times and in bad,
13 and the Covid epidemic has really shown the many flaws
14 and fault lines in fee-for-service payments, and it
15 will never allow providers to really be resilient when
16 we face any sort of uncertainty moving forward. So, if
17 practices were on the verge of closing their doors
18 because of our flawed system, how can we not move to a
19 more sensible payment system such as value-based care?

20 I also want to point out that our current system
21 of fee-for-service care does not support providers
22 working together. It doesn't support investments in
23 wellness. What it does support is management of
24 sickness and illness, and that's the only thing that it
25 pays for. The reasons why ACOs were created was to

1 provide an avenue for providers to be able to invest
2 and work in new and different ways that they weren't
3 able to under a fee-for-service construct, and so
4 that's why they are the federal government's preferred
5 vehicle for really shepherding forward both health care
6 and delivery system reform, because they understand
7 that, if providers aren't changing their focus and
8 changing the way that they work together, we're really
9 not going to reform anything.

10 And I'd like to just point to a quote on this
11 slide that I found really powerful, and you can
12 obviously read the slide, but Steve Gordon from
13 Brattleboro Memorial Hospital kind of put it best that
14 said, when all providers are working together towards a
15 common goal, everybody wins. So it's a victory for
16 all.

17 Tom, next slide, please. ACOs like OneCare really
18 do offer the best opportunity for all provider types to
19 be able to participate in value-based care. You know,
20 having a shared infrastructure to be able to support
21 providers, because, as we know, this is the way that
22 the federal government is moving, and so providers
23 really have to have the tools and resources needed to
24 be able to operate under a value-based care system.

25 And, when Rutland was thinking about entering into

1 the Medicare contract for next year, really, this was
2 one of the things that you have to look at is, Do you
3 have the resources and tools that you need as a
4 community to be able to operate under these value-based
5 programs and share financial risk with payers?

6 And the providers that are part and form OneCare
7 have really decided that having the shared
8 infrastructure, having one single ACO provides them the
9 best opportunity to really achieve that meaningful
10 health care payment and delivery reform in Vermont. We
11 have a lot of conversations about what OneCare is and
12 what it isn't, but, at its core, OneCare really is the
13 sum of all of its parts, Vermont health care providers
14 coming together to invest in a better future for
15 Vermonters.

16 Tom, next slide, please. So, in terms of provider
17 commitment, I would encourage you to really look at the
18 numbers for next year. We did not decline. We did not
19 fall back. Providers are very committed to the reform
20 efforts in Vermont. We're anticipating, and, of
21 course, as you know, the numbers won't be solid until
22 the first quarter of next, next year, that we'll have
23 about 288,000 Vermonters cumulatively covered under ACO
24 value-based programs with about 28,000 new Vermonters
25 coming in that would meet those scale target eligible

1 markers for the state. Now, of course, we do have
2 other programs, but they do not operate under the
3 all-payer model to be able to meet those scale targets.

4 So, as you can see, providers are continuing to
5 form under OneCare. They're continuing to expand their
6 participation, and, really, the providers who make up
7 OneCare are working very hard to do their part in
8 helping the state to meet the reform goals and their
9 scale target goals.

10 Thanks, Tom. So this is one of my busier slides.
11 I had a lot of information I was trying to show here,
12 but, really, at its core, what I want to say is that
13 reforming decades of payment systems that reward volume
14 over value and changing the way that care is delivered
15 is a big job, and it requires all parts of the system
16 to play a role, and that is why the all-payer model
17 really requires a strong public-private partnership,
18 and it requires all stakeholders to really lean into
19 the health care reform efforts.

20 So I'm not going to spend a lot of time on all of
21 the important stakeholders that are part of this model,
22 because our conversation here is about what OneCare's
23 role is in the model, but I just want to briefly touch
24 on them. There is the agreement, and we have talked
25 about this extensively. Really, the agreement is

1 between the State and the federal government, CMS, and
2 an arm of CMS, which is CMMI, and the State has the
3 ultimate responsibility to administer, regulate,
4 evaluate the model, as well as design and finance the
5 public insurance programs such as Medicare and
6 Medicaid.

7 Then you have the payers, and the payers have a
8 really important role, too, in Vermont in that they are
9 the ones that are offering health insurance coverage to
10 Vermonters. They also, if they choose to, can create
11 opportunities for ACOs to work with them to really move
12 away from the fee-for-service and offer value-based
13 programs where payers and providers can share both
14 clinical and financial risk and be able to be rewarded
15 if they do a really good job in meeting both their
16 quality and cost targets.

17 And, currently, in Vermont the two major
18 commercial insurers who have agreed to create such
19 opportunities and work with the State and the ACO are
20 MVP Health Care and Blue Cross Blue Shield of Vermont,
21 and, of course, the public payers, Medicaid or DVHA and
22 the Medicare program.

23 If you go down to -- this is what we're really
24 going to talk about. The all-payer model requires that
25 there be an ACO and that, or ACOs -- you could have

1 more than one ACOs, and, really, they are the ones that
2 the federal government has kind of sanctioned to allow
3 providers to come together in new and different ways to
4 be able to deliver on the metrics that are in the
5 all-payer model. In Vermont, OneCare Vermont is the
6 single ACO that has stepped forward to be part of
7 Vermont's one, reform efforts. So our discussion
8 today, of course, is to talk about OneCare Vermont.
9 There are many more people in the room that are more
10 qualified than me to talk about the role of the State
11 and the payers.

12 So what we're going to talk about today is our
13 budget, how it was created to really support providers
14 in operating under value-based care contracts and to do
15 the hard work that is necessary to really make those
16 investments and change the way that health, health care
17 is delivered and paid for in Vermont.

18 Tom, next slide, please. So I think we had this
19 slide last year, but it's a really important slide, and
20 I just want to take a minute to, to really break it
21 down. Whenever our budget is talked about, it's really
22 this big number at the top of the screen, which is the
23 \$1.45 billion, and, really, that's not OneCare's
24 budget. That's OneCare's accountability. It's our
25 accountability, plus our investments, plus our shared

1 infrastructure costs in that.

2 If you go down to the next line, the \$1.4 billion,
3 or 97 percent of that total accountability, is really
4 what is projected to be spent in health care in 2021
5 for the lives that are attributed to OneCare Vermont,
6 and, if we're doing well and providers are still
7 excited about health care reform and participating,
8 this number will grow. So you want this number to grow
9 over time, because that means that more providers are
10 participating in value-based care opportunities that
11 are offered through the, through the payers.

12 If you go back down one more line, OneCare
13 Vermont's budget, this \$46 million, and so that's
14 really broken down into two components that we're going
15 to spend a lot of time talking about today. The first
16 is the network investments. So that's about 2 percent
17 of our overall accountability or \$30 million. And
18 these are really the dollars that hospitals and
19 insurers are investing in health care programs to
20 support better patient health outcomes in order to meet
21 those goals, both under the all-payer model and the
22 goals that are very specific to the ACO and the payer
23 programs underneath them.

24 OneCare is accountable for really looking at this,
25 the money that comes in, how it's disbursed, for what

1 programs it is disbursed, evaluating the programs to
2 make sure that they're successful, and then working
3 with its provider network to make some decisions around
4 whether or not programs will continue on because we've
5 seen the value proposition in them or whether or not
6 they will sunset for the next year.

7 The next number is operating costs. So this is
8 probably more true to what you think about when you see
9 a budget, and this is really the cost of that shared
10 infrastructure to be able to support providers who
11 would like to participate in value-based care
12 contracts. So this is about 1 percent of our total
13 accountability for the ACO, and, if you think about it,
14 this operating cost really is supporting a statewide
15 infrastructure.

16 The federal government, as we have said, this is
17 the way that they're moving. They're going to be
18 expecting providers to participate in value-based care
19 contracts. So, rather than every community setting up
20 their own system and infrastructure, they've decided to
21 come together to form OneCare to really be able to work
22 together as a state to be successful moving into health
23 care reform efforts.

24 And so the very last line here is a really
25 important one, because there's always a question about

1 our for-profit versus not-for-profit status. OneCare
2 operates as a non-for-profit organization in support of
3 the mission of our founders, because they're both
4 nonprofit organizations. So, at the end of the year,
5 it's always a break-even budget, no profits, no loss.

6 Next slide, Tom. So I just want to really
7 emphasize that the ratio of the OneCare operating
8 expenses, when you look at it as a total of our overall
9 health care accountability, has really declined
10 significantly as we've increased scale in the program,
11 and this is a really important indicator of why you
12 want to have a shared infrastructure and why you don't
13 want every community setting up their own individual
14 infrastructure to be able to support that, because then
15 you'd be up here at the higher number, 11.7 percent,
16 when we started off this initiative and only had about
17 four communities participating.

18 Next slide, Tom. So I think Alena really teed up
19 for us at the beginning that the all-payer model has
20 some pretty lofty goals, and the providers also need
21 the tools to be able to be successful in that, and they
22 need to be able to make the right investments. So,
23 really, our budget supports two things, those
24 investments in population health management so that
25 Vermonters can do better and have better outcomes, as

1 well as that shared infrastructure, which is the data
2 and the tools, the risk mitigations that's necessary to
3 be successful under this model.

4 Next slide, Tom. I want to take a second to
5 really focus on population health investments. So, as
6 we said, pretty lofty goals over a five-year period,
7 and then really important to understand is the
8 all-payer model has goals that the State, remember, in
9 that agreement is responsible for, and then the ACO has
10 specific goals and measures that really tie up to those
11 overall goals of the all-payer model.

12 And so, you know, they're in things like
13 prevention and chronic disease management and mental
14 health and substance use, but they're not the same as
15 the ones under the all-payer model, but, really, what
16 we need to do as an ACO and as a provider group is look
17 at what those measures are, how we're doing, and then
18 make some decisions about the programs and investments
19 that the providers need in order to be successful under
20 the metrics that are defined for them.

21 And so, when we look at that and we also look at,
22 you know, we're all under some pretty hard economic
23 times right now, and so we have to be really thoughtful
24 about the programs, because, you know, providers who
25 are investing in these programs have less and less

1 revenues, and so they have to make sure that the
2 investments that they're making are really going to
3 help drive better outcomes on those metrics.

4 So for 2021 we really think about it in two
5 overall buckets: primary care investments, because we
6 know that primary care is foundational to help us both
7 lower the cost of care as well as meet some of those
8 quality indicators, and we also need community health
9 and the providers in the community health such as home
10 health designated agencies, skilled nursing facilities
11 to be, really be working in tandem with primary care
12 providers to meet the needs of the patients.

13 So, overall, in totality still a pretty nice
14 number for next year. We're anticipating about \$30
15 million in investments in population health programs.
16 19 of it is projected to support primary care. You
17 know, we've talked a lot about the programs specific to
18 independent primary care, and I believe we've presented
19 to this board really looking at what those
20 opportunities are in addition to the fee-for-service
21 revenue that they receive from the payers, and really
22 independent who are fully participating in value-based
23 care programs through OneCare Vermont can earn up to 49
24 percent more revenue than what they receive currently
25 from the payers.

1 So that's significant for those providers, and you
2 can see, back to the first slide, why physician
3 practices like Joe Hagan really think that this type of
4 payment is more sensible for them as they move forward.
5 It also means, though, that they have to take some risk
6 and accountability in it, and so providers of OneCare
7 who are signing up understand that risk and
8 accountability that is really tied to changing the way
9 that health care is delivered.

10 We have population-based payments that help us to
11 meet overall goals under the model, as well as the
12 total cost of care target, because, if we're not
13 meeting those targets, then we cease to exist as an
14 organization and as health care providers under
15 value-based care. So they're important to be able to
16 meet those targets.

17 We're also providing some payments to make sure
18 that individuals are connected with primary care
19 providers to make sure that they have a medical home.
20 Not all Vermonters are readily connected with a primary
21 care provider, and we think that's really important.
22 Care coordination, which I'm really excited, we're
23 going to show you a video if technology holds later on
24 in the presentation about an individual who has really
25 benefited from the care coordination programs that are

1 designed by OneCare's providers and carried out by the
2 providers who make up OneCare Vermont. So that's some
3 pretty exciting stuff. We hope you'll enjoy the video.

4 There's also the continued financial support for
5 state-led programs. So these are not OneCare programs.
6 These are state-led reform programs through the
7 Blueprint for Health, and Blueprint for Health has been
8 in Vermont for a very long time and is very important
9 to support primary care and care coordination out in
10 the community.

11 As we move over, community health investments,
12 again, care coordination, because it's important for
13 the team to be working together, as Steve Gordon noted
14 previously, to stop working in silos and everybody come
15 together around the patients to ask them what they
16 need. Longitudinal care programs offered through home
17 health that have really shown some nice outcomes in
18 terms of managing chronic illness for people. We have
19 some programs for our, our moms and new babies to make
20 sure that they have the opportunity to get good
21 prevention and get all the care that they need to be
22 healthy adults.

23 Work in primary care prevention and thinking about
24 doing some new work with the Blueprint along the
25 self-management programs, and, of course, still testing

1 some pilots around mental health. Mental health is
2 really important, has really shown that mental health
3 conditions are really on the rise, especially during
4 the pandemic. So want to make sure that we continue
5 support, supporting both SASH and the DAs that are
6 doing some good work around these programs and then,
7 again, continuing the financial support of these
8 state-led programs, such as the Community Health Team
9 and SASH.

10 Next slide, Tom. So I think this is my last
11 slide, and this is really looking at our overall
12 operations budget and what it supports. So our
13 operations budget, again, is supporting a state-shared
14 infrastructure so that providers can participate in
15 value-based care, and not every community has to do
16 that on their own. I don't think that we'd be better
17 off if everybody decided to go at it on their own and
18 set up their own infrastructure, not to mention the
19 fact that it would probably be rather costly to be able
20 to do that.

21 So the two ways that we are really looking at
22 supporting providers is to make sure that they have the
23 tools that they need to be able to deliver on those
24 delivery reform goals and also be able to participate
25 in payment reform programs with the payers, which means

1 that providers have risk, financial risk, as well as
2 some -- they've always had the clinical risk, but the
3 financial risk that transfers over to them.

4 So, in terms of what are the tools, the tangible
5 things that OneCare is providing in the delivery care
6 reform space, that's really the data and analysis, so
7 taking the clinical and claims data that would not
8 otherwise be available to them unless they participated
9 through an ACO and really combining those data sets to
10 show providers where there's opportunity or where
11 there's variances in care, a lot of the quality reports
12 to show how we're doing in terms of overall quality
13 measurement.

14 We also are responsible as the central ACO for
15 looking at the benefit and payment waivers that are
16 available to ACOs only to be able to provide better
17 flexibility and a better patient experience, such as
18 the three-day stay waiver, and then, of course, really
19 being, housing those best practices and care
20 coordination programs that will deliver on better
21 patient care.

22 In the payment reform space, as we've discussed,
23 the federal government has essentially decided back in
24 the Affordable Care Act that ACOs would be the vehicle
25 by which providers could come together and be able to

1 share risk and rewards with payers, as long as they do
2 a good job, and then also allowing ACOs to offer
3 value-based payment programs that incentivize value
4 over volume and take some of those fee-for-service
5 dollars that are flowing through the system already and
6 converting them to value-based fixed payments, which
7 essentially provide the providers of OneCare with a
8 predictable payment stream.

9 Lastly, the way that we're able to do this is that
10 we have to invoke certain payment waivers to allow for
11 these investments in other organizations both inside
12 and outside of the ACO, such as the state-led payment
13 reform initiatives. So I believe that's my last slide,
14 and I want to turn it over to my colleague, Tom Borys,
15 who is the Vice President of Finance for OneCare
16 Vermont. Thank you, Tom.

17 MR. BORYS: All right. Hi, everyone. This
18 is Tom Borys speaking, just to orient you to my voice
19 if you're not on video. The upcoming finance section
20 of the presentation today has been broken up into two
21 parts. The first section will be in regard to the 2021
22 ACO programs, and these are the, the arrangements that
23 OneCare enters into with its payers to convert from a
24 volume-based system to a value-based system, and we'll
25 talk about components such as attribution, total cost

1 of care, and risk and reward. The second section of
2 the presentation here will then shift to the OneCare
3 budget as it pertains to OneCare as an organization
4 facilitating these programs for our network and for our
5 state.

6 The quote here from Claudio Fort, President and
7 CEO of Rutland Regional Medical Center, is very
8 poignant and related to the ACO programs here, "The
9 pandemic has made it clear that fee-for-service is
10 unsustainable, and we're fully committed to value-based
11 care as the solution to stabilizing Vermont's
12 increasing health care costs".

13 I think this points out a really important factor
14 here, which is that moving into the value-based care is
15 the beginning of and creates the purpose for all the
16 work that we do at OneCare Vermont and is the reason
17 that we exist as an organization.

18 All right. So let's talk about which programs we
19 have on offer this year. The headline here is that
20 there's continuation of all programs offered in 2020.
21 So we are neither expecting any new programs nor
22 sunsetting any programs. To me, that's a good outcome,
23 in light of the tumultuous year we've had in 2020 as a
24 result of the pandemic. This pandemic really affects
25 all of our programs. So, at the macro level, we are

1 working with our payers to address a few key areas.

2 Attribution, what we're trying to avoid is an
3 attribution dip that results from deferred or delayed
4 care in the first six months of this year. Attribution
5 is driven largely by a claim or a code, and, if people
6 were avoiding health care services during the heavy
7 stay home, stay safe period, we want to make sure
8 there's not an adverse effect on attribution.

9 Total cost of care, complex process has set a fair
10 expectation of health care costs into 2021,
11 particularly hard knowing that 2020 is a very unusual
12 year and almost impossible to rely upon. So we're
13 working to make sure that we have a methodology with
14 the payers to come up with a fair target. And then,
15 lastly, risk arrangements, which I'll speak to in a
16 moment, but really just responding to the financial
17 impact of Covid on health care providers across the
18 state.

19 When we look at each of the different program
20 offerings, no huge headlines here for Medicare. We are
21 following the all-payer model lead and putting a 4.35
22 percent trend rate per the CMS United States per capita
23 cost forecast. In Medicaid we will be continuing with
24 the expanded attribution model. This was in place for
25 the first time in a large scale in 2020. We hoped to

1 glean a little bit more information about it, but, of
2 course, the pandemic affects much.

3 And in Blue Cross Primary the big force here is
4 working with Blue Cross to increase employer
5 understanding of the program model. There was a lot of
6 confusion about really what this program was, how it
7 worked, and we would like to keep working with Blue
8 Cross on that.

9 All right. 9.4 percent growth in all, in
10 scale-target attribution, really, two key areas where
11 this is a change from this, from the 2020 year. First
12 is in Medicare. Happy to report that we will have
13 about a 17 percent, 18 percent increase in Medicare
14 attribution due to the Rutland HSA participation.
15 They're joining this program for the first time, large
16 community. So we expect quite a bit of attributed life
17 growth in that program.

18 Next, we have some attribution growth anticipated
19 in the Blue Cross Blue Shield Vermont Primary program.
20 That is the program for self-funded plans and fully
21 insured large group. Really, the Blue Cross Primary
22 program is one program but with two components.
23 There's a risk track and non-risk track, as elected by
24 the employer plans. We have anticipated in this budget
25 model that some employers move from the non-risk into

1 the risk model with Blue Cross, and, therefore, those
2 lives would count for scale, so, really, a shift from
3 the rightmost column to the left, the column just to
4 its left.

5 As Vicki mentioned before, the \$1.4 billion number
6 is the total of our health care costs in value-based
7 contracts. Again, a bigger number here. It doesn't
8 represent more spending; it means more accountability
9 for Vermont providers. So 17.1 percent growth over
10 what we are anticipating for 2020. The big area,
11 again, is Medicare, largely driven by Rutland's
12 participation for the first time.

13 Also important to note, the other growth factors
14 for particularly the commercial plans are based on
15 attribution and insurance rates as approved in the rate
16 filing. So we linked back to those filings as a source
17 of information for how much the trend rate will move.
18 There's ultimately an actuarial process that the payers
19 go through to determine the fair target, but that's
20 what we use for our source data points to project the
21 total cost of care for each of these programs.

22 So, despite the fact that the prior slide had our
23 best estimates of total cost of care and they will move
24 once the actuarial process and the attribution comes
25 through, they are important estimates in that those

1 total cost of care numbers give us a sense or an idea
2 of how much risk or reward the providers have, OneCare
3 has in this budget model.

4 The big change coming up in 2021 is really
5 significant reductions in risk. And why are we doing
6 that? There's really two reasons. One, we needed to
7 respond to the financial impact of Covid on the
8 provider community. I think the providers, as well as
9 many of us personally, are a little bit risk-averse
10 right now with some uncertainty in the future in terms
11 of what this pandemic means for us all economically.
12 So everybody, really, a little bit of risk aversion at
13 this point in time.

14 So the goal was to balance that pressure with the
15 desire to stay on the value-based care path, and by
16 that I mean continue to have some two-sided
17 accountability, as we think that's very important. So
18 it's a balance between those two different pressure
19 points. I can say there's a lot of momentum within the
20 provider community right now, and finding that balance
21 is really important to help keep this network together
22 for 2021, and we've largely done so with these budget
23 modifications.

24 You can see I compared in the table the 2020
25 pre-Covid budget of \$36.6 million of risk or potential

1 reward to what we have anticipated in 2021, so a
2 significant reduction, \$17.5 million less in total
3 risk. That was a really important change for us to
4 build into this budget model and negotiate with payers
5 to keep the network at the table in these unusual
6 times.

7 The budget does not include the Medicare risk
8 protection arrangement we've had in the past. I can
9 speak in more depth if you'd like, but, simply put,
10 with a narrower risk corridor, the cost of a policy
11 relative to the protection that it buys doesn't make a
12 lot of sense. It becomes expensive for relatively
13 little protection overall. So we've not budgeted that
14 expense in this year's budget model. I'll also note
15 that the MVP program is upside only in this budget
16 model and has additional \$1.5 million upside
17 opportunity with no downside risk.

18 All right. Next, we'll talk about the risk model
19 evolution. In 2021 savings and losses will be
20 distributed differently amongst OneCare providers. At
21 the highest level, the OneCare aggregate results, so
22 whatever the shared savings or shared loss result is
23 between OneCare and its payer, contracted payer, will
24 be allocated proportionately to the health service
25 areas.

1 In the past, we have set up what we referred to as
2 mini-ACOs for each HSA where we gave each HSA its own
3 target and then settled with them independently and
4 tried to do so in a way that reconciled the HSA
5 settlements with the aggregate OneCare settlement with
6 the payer. This change moves us to a model where all
7 boats rise together, and what it does is helps in four
8 different areas. One, it creates a statewide system of
9 health. The all-payer model calls for Vermont to do
10 well managing health care cost growth. What we've
11 learned over the last few years is that OneCare's
12 statewide network --

13 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: If we could ask somebody to
14 mute themselves, whoever is not speaking.

15 MR. BORYS: Thank you, Chair Mullin. This
16 model creates a statewide system of health. We are one
17 network of providers, and we've certainly learned over
18 the last few years that there is a lot of cross-HSA,
19 cross-provider care where a life might attribute to
20 Berlin, but they're receiving care up in Burlington or
21 in St. Johnsbury, a lot of cross-HSA care. So we're
22 trying to create more of a system where we're all
23 working together, and, if everybody does the little
24 things that we ask of them in these models, we can all
25 succeed together.

1 Next, we hope that this model results in provider
2 success, aligning more closely with Vermont's success
3 under the all-payer model. Again, the all-payer model
4 is a statewide initiative for all Vermonters and their
5 health care costs. If we succeed as a state in this
6 model -- we'd like the providers to succeed as well --
7 we all have a shared mission, shared goals in that way,
8 rather than looking at, How is my own HSA doing
9 independently of how Vermont's doing overall in the
10 all-payer model?

11 This is important, but it's much simpler and much
12 more stable to do it this way. I can tell you, from an
13 analytic and actuarial standpoint, taking our total
14 cost of care and slicing it down into HSA components is
15 really difficult and really difficult to explain. This
16 change will help ensure that our network participants
17 understand their results more and there's more clarity
18 in terms of what they receive, or hopefully not, but
19 all at the end of the year.

20 Last is it avoids some actuarial challenges with
21 small populations. Some of the communities that
22 attribute lives have very few members and wouldn't even
23 be allowed to participate in standard Medicare models,
24 because they attribute too few lives, and, when you
25 have a population that small, a few high-cost cases can

1 really dictate your end result, even if you're doing
2 really good population health work. So, for all of
3 those reasons, we'll be moving to this proportionately
4 shared results model in 2021.

5 The next big evolution in the risk models base is
6 that, for the first time, providers other than
7 hospitals are included in the accountability model and
8 have an opportunity to claim shared savings. So for
9 two-sided risk programs what this means is that the
10 OneCare primary care investment will start at a base
11 amount and increase from there based on performance.

12 So, looking at the chart here, it moves from left
13 to right. We'll start at a base of \$1.75 PMPM, so
14 still at the tip. If the program breaks even, we
15 restore the \$1.50 PMPM up to the \$3.25. That's the
16 historical amount received. So that's if the program
17 were to absolutely break dead even and have no shared
18 savings and no shared loss.

19 What's new this year in terms of financial
20 opportunity is that, if the program earns shared
21 savings, we will first use a portion of those shared
22 savings to pay a \$1.50 PMPM to all attributing
23 providers to give them access to some of the shared
24 savings dollars that we would earn in this scenario at
25 the network level. So this gives the financial

1 opportunity of \$4.75 PMPM, which is higher than the
2 historical opportunity of \$3.25.

3 The reason we decided to do it this way where we
4 changed this base PMPM investment to a variable
5 performance-based model is that it avoids the need to
6 invoice primary care at the end of the year. Having
7 spoken to primary care practices for a number of years
8 in regard to their decision to participate, the specter
9 of a downside risk payment at the end of the year, I
10 think, would have prevented a lot of participation. So
11 we wanted to come up with a model that included all
12 primary care, hospital, FQHC, independent, in the
13 accountability model without the potential for a
14 year-end invoice.

15 The last bullet on this slide, "Expanding
16 accountability more broadly across the provider
17 spectrum, we believe, is a strategy to encourage
18 increased engagement". Certainly, the hospitals have
19 been engaged, because they have a financial stake in
20 our results, and we hope that the same happens more
21 broadly with the FQHC and the independent and hospital
22 employee primary care as well so that we're all driving
23 towards the same shared goals of success in these
24 programs.

25 I'll also note we have a couple of different

1 program designs. Some are upside only. Some are
2 two-sided risk. Some are planning to hold risk
3 centrally at OneCare. This model, where the base
4 payment is \$1.75 and goes up from there, applies only
5 to two-sided risk programs where the network has
6 downside risk.

7 If it's an upside-only program, we'll keep paying
8 the base PMPM payment at \$3.25. There's no need to
9 start at that lower level, and we'll still offer the
10 \$1.50 of shared savings opportunity. If the program is
11 such that we're holding the risk centrally at OneCare
12 Vermont, we'll pay the \$3.25 out. There will no
13 opportunity for the \$1.50 in that model.

14 So that concludes the summary of the ACO program
15 terms. I wanted to hit on the high points. There is a
16 lot more information in our submitted budget documents.
17 I invite you all to look at those, as you can just see
18 how all of these numbers break down, and there's many
19 more year-over-year comparisons to see in those
20 documents.

21 So, next, we're going to shift to OneCare
22 Vermont's budget. Again, this is the budget of the
23 organization of OneCare. What do we do as an entity?
24 First, I'm going to start with an overview. \$46.7
25 million budget, Vicki referenced this at the beginning

1 of the presentation on that total accountability slide.
2 Again, a balanced budget. No profit or loss built into
3 the model, no additional contributions to reserves.
4 We're comfortable with the number that we have at
5 present.

6 Key strategies in this budget bill, "Enhance
7 sustainability of Vermont's health care reform
8 efforts", and there's two sub-bullets here. One,
9 "Increased focus on program areas with opportunity to
10 yield positive total cost of care and quality
11 outcomes". To make this sustainable, we need to have
12 some strong performance, earn the shared savings that
13 help offset the costs of reform.

14 And then, next, speaking of the cost of reform,
15 "Do our part in reducing health care reform costs
16 placed on dues-paying hospitals". I'll pause on this
17 for just a moment and say why it's important to reduce
18 the dues for hospitals. The hospitals are really
19 important players in our model. Not only do they bear
20 the bulk of the risk that somebody needs to hold in
21 these two-sided risk programs, they also invest in the
22 payment reform programs and initiatives.

23 Based on both Covid and its financial impact on
24 the network, we needed to reduce dues to hospitals to
25 allow them to stay in, and, importantly, right-size the

1 dues with the financial opportunity they have in these
2 programs. If the dues are so sizable that they can,
3 the hospitals can never really or reasonably earn those
4 dollars back through strong performance, it's unlikely
5 they'll stay in the model for any long period of time.

6 It's important to keep the hospitals in the model,
7 because they are the gatekeepers that allow all the
8 other providers in the communities to participate, so
9 independent primary care, FQHCs, home health, DAs, etc.
10 So keeping them at the table is the strategy to make
11 sure that we can do the next bullet, which is, "Sustain
12 core programs and commitments". Without the hospitals,
13 we will be unable to really sustain those commitments.
14 Lastly, we need to continue to invest in primary care.

15 All right. As Vicki mentioned earlier in the
16 presentation, the \$46.7 million budget has two main
17 components. 30.6 is earmarked for population health
18 management investments. These are investments that
19 give the providers the financial resources to engage in
20 these ACO activities and value-based care activities.
21 And then we have our 16.1 OneCare shared infrastructure
22 costs, which are to facilitate these programs, work
23 with the provider community, and help us all succeed in
24 this model.

25 In keeping with the theme of hitting on the

1 highlights here, we'll start with revenue. We've
2 budgeted consistent reform investment through payer
3 contracts, so nothing earth-shattering in that space.
4 Those are the investments that we negotiate with payers
5 such as Blue Cross, MVP, Medicaid to help invest in
6 these reform efforts. So no big changes anticipated in
7 that space.

8 The budget does anticipate level delivery system
9 reform funding of \$3.9 million subject to state and
10 federal approval. Because this is a very sizable
11 revenue stream, just wanted to note that, if this does
12 fail to materialize, we will have to come back to this
13 board for some budget revisions. It's a very
14 significant part of our budget model.

15 Next, we no longer have the health information
16 technology funding revenue. It was \$2.8 million in
17 2020. It really supported our technology
18 infrastructure and development of new analytic tools
19 and capabilities. The federal funding source for these
20 dollars ended. So there's no longer access to the
21 funds.

22 New line here, we have an \$861,000 contract with
23 the Blueprint for Self-Management Programming. This is
24 an effort to, again, continue to align what OneCare
25 does with other state initiatives so that we have a

1 more coordinated and succinct care model across all of
2 these different initiatives.

3 And then last bullet, a \$9.5 million reduction in
4 hospital dues over the 2020 pre-Covid budgeted level.
5 So, just for everyone's knowledge here, we submitted a
6 pre-Covid budget in 2020. After the pandemic hit, we
7 made numerous changes to our operational model and
8 submitted what I call a post-Covid budget. The dues
9 budgeted for 2021 are \$9.5 million less than that
10 pre-Covid budget, and then the sub-bullet says, \$3.3
11 million reduction from the post-Covid budget. So we're
12 still able to offer continued dues reduction even
13 relative to the post-Covid budget level.

14 For those who like the numbers a little bit more,
15 this all references some of the same content, but I'll
16 point out a couple areas. The top row, payer program
17 support, again, these are negotiated through our
18 contracts. It is up almost \$600,000. That's just
19 attribution change, no significant changes to the
20 actual model underneath. You can see a few rows down
21 the health information technology funding going from
22 \$2.8 million to zero. That was one of the bigger
23 challenges in this budget build is how to accommodate
24 the loss of \$2.8 million of revenue.

25 And then, at the very bottom this is the total.

1 See the hospital dues. This is the \$3.3 million
2 reduction in dues, and just note the 2020 numbers there
3 reflect the revised post-Covid budget.

4 All right. Next, we'll shift to the expense side
5 of the equation, and this will be broken into two parts
6 as well. This first section will reference the
7 population health management investments, or the \$30.6
8 million we spoke of before. First, continuation of
9 longstanding population health initiatives really to
10 protect the established revenue streams. We've been
11 investing in the provider community for a number of
12 years now and really asked them to do something with
13 those investments, and one of the challenges is we
14 don't want to pull the rug out from any of those
15 funding streams. So a key goal here was to make sure
16 we could sustain those longstanding initiatives.

17 Comprehensive payment reform programming, again,
18 in short, this is the program for independent primary
19 care where we're able to move them off of the
20 fee-for-service basis and now pay them under a
21 capitation model. Continued program growth at a number
22 of practices in 2021, which is exciting, and in that
23 model there's a \$5 PMPM enhancement for participation
24 to help them really in this transition afforded by
25 shifting off of fee-for-service and onto a fixed

1 payment model.

2 Next, we have a two-pronged strategy to quality.
3 What we're trying to do through program negotiations is
4 align the quality components with the way Medicare and
5 actually many of the commercial programs incorporate
6 quality into these programs, whereby the quality score
7 affects the amount of shared savings you can earn or
8 the amount of shared losses that you would owe. So it
9 ends up being a component of settlement at the end of
10 the year.

11 So, as a quick example, let's say you're going to
12 earn shared savings but you have a poor quality score.
13 The amount of shared savings you actually receive would
14 start to go down. In tandem with that, we would like
15 to separately fund a value-based incentive funds in
16 similar form but in a way that allows for more targeted
17 focus and timely rewards for strong performance. We
18 have certainly learned over the last few years that the
19 value-based incentive fund is a nice concept, but the
20 payout was very far after the program year and I think,
21 in my opinion, diluted the impact of it.

22 So what we'd like to do is have a little bit more
23 of a nimble value-based incentive fund with more
24 targeted measures and being able to pay out rewards for
25 strong performance much more promptly to keep quality

1 and quality measures on the forefront of everyone's
2 mind, rather than this back end that comes many months
3 after the program year's over.

4 Last on this slide we have that new Blueprint
5 Self-Management Program initiative. So there's some
6 expenses associated with that along with the revenue.
7 That's a pretty common theme in our OneCare budget. If
8 there's a revenue stream, there's often a network
9 expense that goes with it. Again, creates further
10 alignment between Blueprint and OneCare programs.

11 So, looking again at numbers, two different views
12 of the same numbers. You see the \$30.6 million number
13 at the bottom of this table here. This shows the
14 population health management investment areas, so
15 really, the, the function or the source of the
16 investment. So on the top we have primary care
17 services included in this row, things like the \$3.25
18 PMPM. We have primary care engagement payments where
19 we pay primary care to engage in those geographically
20 or expanded attribution of lives to enhance primary
21 care access.

22 Next, we have care coordination efforts really
23 designed to enhance the coordination of care across
24 different providers. We have quality, primary
25 prevention, helping to keep a healthy population well.

1 Specialty and innovation investments, again, investing
2 in innovative program pilots with the opportunity to
3 improve care or generate savings. And then last row
4 are the Blueprint programs and sustaining funding for
5 the SASH, Community Health Teams, and Patient Centered
6 Medical Home initiatives.

7 The next slide, you'll note the bottom row has the
8 exact same dollar figure but just a different
9 presentation. We've now broken it down, rather than
10 investment areas, but by investment recipients, what
11 type of provider or recipient is receiving these funds.
12 ACOs are largely primary care models and, in alignment
13 with that, primary care providers show up at the top
14 row, \$19 million in investment. They receive funding
15 through the base PMPM, the care coordination program,
16 the value-based incentive fund, the comprehensive
17 payment reform program, etc.

18 Moving down, we have SASH, the community health
19 teams, significant amount of dollars invested in those
20 two areas. Home health, some, definitely big
21 participants in our care coordination program and
22 recipients of value-based incentive fund dollars.
23 Community investments, largely in line with the primary
24 prevention initiative, such as RiseVT, getting the
25 community involved in health care and through things

1 like amplifying grants. Helping to improve the health
2 of our population is now going beyond just what you
3 would call a traditional health care provider.
4 Specialty and acute care we have next. Designated
5 agencies and mental health followed by area agencies on
6 aging in the last row.

7 All right. Now we shift to expense highlights in
8 regard to operations, or the \$16.1 million number
9 referenced earlier in the presentation. We're largely
10 an organization of people. So I think spending a
11 moment on staffing is important here. I've displayed
12 three different columns, the pre-Covid budget, the
13 post-Covid budget, and the 2021 budget. There are two
14 rows, position count and paid FTEs.

15 Position count is literally a count of the people
16 working for OneCare Vermont, and paid FTEs reflects
17 both a position's effort -- so, if a position is a
18 four-day-a-week position, it would be prorated
19 accordingly -- and, also, when the position is hired
20 during the year. So a position hired on July 1st --
21 that's the midpoint of our year -- in this approach
22 counts for a .5 rather than a 1.0.

23 What we see here on the position count is that we
24 started with 79 different positions in the pre-Covid
25 budget. When we went back and recast the budget in

1 response to COVID-19, we reduced that down to 68
2 positions, largely by deleting new growth areas. We
3 had an anticipated pharmacy program and a couple of new
4 initiatives planned that we put on hold or cut
5 entirely. So that's how we got from 79 down to 68
6 positions between 2020 post-Covid and 2021. There's a
7 lot of moving parts. It's not just two positions, but
8 there are two fewer positions overall in this 2021
9 model than there were in the 2020 post-Covid.

10 Paid FTEs, it's important to note, particularly in
11 the 2020 post-Covid column, we implemented a hiring
12 freeze in 2020 in order to offer dues related to the
13 hospitals. So the actual paid FTEs in 2020 is down
14 substantially, 59.03 relative to the 68 positions that
15 were actually included in our model. What we see when
16 we move from 2020 to 2021 is a restoration of many of
17 those positions held vacant during the hiring freeze.

18 The table below shows just a quick view of
19 salaries and benefits per FTE. So you see we set the
20 blue line at the 2019 level. It went down a little bit
21 from 2019 to 2020 pre-Covid. It will move just based
22 on the mix of staffing at OneCare Vermont and what new
23 positions you may add or remove. You see a drop in
24 2020 post-Covid. That's going to be due to both the
25 hiring freeze and also implementation of compensation

1 reductions during the Covid period, again, in, in
2 spirit of offering dues relief to hospitals. When we
3 restore the compensation reductions and the hiring
4 freeze, we now get back up to, it's just about the 2020
5 pre-Covid level on the salary and benefit per FTE.

6 Below, we have our operating expenses just like
7 everybody else, general expense management, trying to
8 be good stewards of our resources. There is
9 uncertainty still in regard to our 2021 work structure.
10 We are working remotely in this organization right now.
11 We're not certain which direction we'll be heading and
12 when. The budget assumes some returning to normal at
13 some point just to be conservative, but not at the
14 pre-Covid levels. So that just remains an area of
15 uncertainty, I think, for many of us right now, but
16 wanted to note that in this presentation here, and then
17 we do have an increased budget for the Green Mountain
18 Care Board billback.

19 Staying true to theme here now is an opportunity
20 to look at this from a numbers perspective. The most
21 important number I want to point out and explain is
22 this change in salaries. It is going up \$1.4 million,
23 but, as the previous slide showed, it's not from new
24 positions, and it's not from big raises. It's from
25 lifting the hiring freeze and restoring compensation

1 reductions implemented during the pandemic.

2 We do anticipate transitioning some contracted
3 positions to staff and really using contracted services
4 only when absolutely necessary. This is part of our
5 expense management, why you see this reduction in
6 contracted spending. Many of the other budget lines,
7 pretty neutral or normal. No big changes in that
8 space. Now you see the Green Mountain Care Board
9 billback is a growing expense in the budget. When we
10 look at the table or the chart at the bottom, the most
11 sizable increases are in three areas. One, central
12 admin, this is where those leadership compensation
13 reductions hit. So, again, just restoring that back up
14 is what the increase here references.

15 Two areas of investment, finance, complexity, and
16 the number of these programs continues to grow. Need
17 to resource accordingly. And then population health
18 analytics is another key area. Now that we are
19 incorporating more providers into the accountability
20 model, we need to make sure that we can deliver the
21 right information to them to keep them informed.

22 Again, putting the economies of scale, as we've
23 basically retained a pretty similar core infrastructure
24 here at OneCare. As we grow, our total accountability,
25 this ratio of total health care costs to operating

1 expenses, continues to decline, and the hope it
2 continues on this trajectory as we move forward.

3 This slide brings it all together. We show both
4 the total cost of care targets, the \$1.4 billion
5 number, alongside the payer contract revenue, DSR
6 funding, other revenues, and hospital dues. Here's the
7 \$1.46 billion total accountability model and then the
8 corresponding expenses below, and, again, a zero dollar
9 gain and loss.

10 Pie chart on the right, nearly 97 percent of this
11 model is made up of health services spending, so
12 existing health care costs that are now part of a
13 value-based care model. 2.1 percent are the population
14 health management investments we're able to deliver to
15 the provider community, and then 1.1 percent is for the
16 OneCare operations and shared infrastructure.

17 Difficult to squeeze onto this slide. So, again,
18 I'll point to the submitted budget documents but wanted
19 to include an income statement and balance sheet view
20 just having a little bit more detail about some of the
21 different programs and initiatives for each of the
22 years. Sorry for the small font. We have a lot of
23 different initiatives and components to the both income
24 statement and the balance sheet.

25 I feel obligated to note that this is a non-GAAP

1 presentation, because many of these funds don't belong
2 to OneCare. We have total cost of care targets.
3 They're the measuring stick for performance is the
4 actual total cost of care paid to providers. How are
5 those targets in reference to the actual experience?
6 So they aren't funds that flow through OneCare. They
7 don't belong to us. So, therefore, they don't show up
8 on a OneCare financial statement, but they are part of
9 our total accountability. So this is designed to show
10 the full scope of OneCare's operations and programming,
11 but just need to note the non-GAAP nature of the
12 presentation.

13 For the balance sheet, I think it's important to
14 note in the cash investments and accounts payable
15 section we get prepaid for the Medicaid fixed payment.
16 So they pay us in December for January's fixed payment.
17 So that large number there reflects the amount we're
18 paid in December that will be paid out to hospitals and
19 primary care participating in the CPR program in the
20 following month. So there's always, in my estimation,
21 an inflated view of cash on the OneCare balance sheet
22 because of that prepayment model.

23 And that is it for the finance section, and I'll
24 turn it over to Sara Barry from here.

25 MS. BARRY: Thanks, Tom. Good morning,

1 everyone. This is Sara Barry. I'm the Chief Operating
2 Officer for OneCare Vermont, and I'm just going to
3 highlight a couple of key areas that we're focused on
4 in our population health management programs and share
5 with you some of the progress that we're making. So,
6 Tom, if you could advance the slide.

7 Hopefully, by now this general graphic is quite
8 familiar to most, if not all, of you. Today I really
9 want to use it to highlight some of the core activities
10 that we have underway to improve care and outcomes for
11 Vermonters that are served by the ACO, and so I call
12 your attention to the bullets within each of the boxes
13 as I touch just briefly on some key activities in each
14 one.

15 So, starting at the top left, here we focus on the
16 health and wellness across the life span, and really
17 central to achieving and maintaining health are access
18 to preventive services from health care providers.
19 While the majority of individuals have a relationship
20 with their primary care provider, where they don't,
21 such as in our Medicaid expanded cohort where
22 individuals are attributed based on where they live,
23 we're working really hard with our providers to promote
24 creation of that relationship and develop a
25 longstanding trust to help facilitate, not only

1 preventive care, but any other acute needs that might
2 come up over time.

3 In quadrant two, a new area of focus for us is on
4 the collaboration between OneCare and the Blueprint to
5 evolve self-management programming to really be
6 reflective of today's best practices and individual
7 preferences about how individuals want to access
8 services and supports. As we move into 2021, OneCare
9 will assume oversight for the self-management program,
10 and we've been working very hard with the Blueprint and
11 the Health Department in evolving those programs and
12 the vision together.

13 The initial focus areas will be on developing
14 programs to support Vermonters who experience
15 hypertension and/or diabetes, because we know together
16 they impact more than 50 percent of our population,
17 and, to earlier points made, they're very much in line
18 with trying to improve chronic disease management under
19 the State's all-payer model goals.

20 In addition, we're not only focusing on those
21 individuals that currently have hypertension or
22 diabetes, we're also looking at some new ways to move
23 upstream and identify individuals who are at risk for
24 full-blown disease and try to help them intervene early
25 by making different lifestyle choices, receiving

1 information and supports to help hopefully prevent that
2 disease from happening.

3 In Quadrants 3 and 4 we know that 95 percent of
4 the high-risk individuals in these 2 cohorts have
5 multiple chronic conditions, and more than half of them
6 have a combination of physical and mental health
7 concerns. In these areas OneCare's focus continues to
8 be on investing in care coordination through increased
9 engagement and specific actionable data, such as our
10 COVID-19 application that we launched in early April
11 this year and is described in more detail in our
12 narrative.

13 By early September this year, we had achieved an
14 over 600 percent increase in our number of individuals,
15 our number of Vermonters who are engaged in our care
16 coordination programs, moving to more than 4,000
17 individuals. So we're really excited about that,
18 because, as we move through 2020 and into 2021, it will
19 give us the opportunity to understand in more depth and
20 sophistication really the impact these care
21 coordination interventions are having, not only at the
22 individual level, but also at more of a systemic level.

23 And so I'm going to pause now and ask Tom to turn
24 us over to a very brief video. This is an example of
25 an individual, a real Vermonter, who has experienced

1 our care coordination and a bit of his story about
2 what's happened during the last year.

3 (Video recording playing.)

4 MS. BARRY: Thank you, Tom. So I think that
5 was a great just brief example of the types of impact
6 this community-based care coordination program can have
7 on individuals, and we're really looking forward over
8 the next months to continuing to work with these
9 community-based care teams to gather additional case
10 studies and examples, as well as really look at the
11 outcomes that we're able to see at more of a population
12 level over time.

13 So, next, I want to focus just a little bit on
14 some of our quality data, but I do want to point out
15 that key utilization data and results are highlighted
16 in our narrative budget submission, not included in
17 slides for the presentation today, primarily just due
18 to the length of time that would take up to go through.

19 And, globally, I want to start by stating that
20 providers in OneCare's network are contributing to the
21 State's overarching all-payer model population health
22 goals through their work on decreasing fragmentation,
23 aligning and coordinating care, and improving
24 screenings, assessments, and referrals to needed
25 services. In addition, they're very active in

1 supporting individuals in their decision-making
2 processes around the care that those individuals want
3 and need. At the same time, many of the all-payer
4 model indicators represent challenging and complex
5 systems to change and yet also represent tangible goals
6 for us to be working towards as a system. All in all,
7 OneCare providers are doing their part in support of
8 Vermont's all-payer model goals.

9 So, as we looked to the data from the end of the
10 second year of the all-payer model, so late in 2019, we
11 noted some interesting progress. So I'm going to just
12 briefly go through those three overarching all-payer
13 model goals and give you a couple of highlights. So,
14 in the area of reducing deaths related to suicide and
15 drug overdose, we can see that providers are working to
16 improve follow-up from an emergency department visit
17 for alcohol and other drug dependence as well as for
18 mental health concerns.

19 Currently, one of the areas that OneCare is
20 exploring in partnership with local hospitals and
21 designated agencies is a funding stream where three
22 designated agencies have embedded mental health
23 clinicians in their local emergency departments and are
24 supporting follow-up care, as well as working upstream
25 to promote access to community-based mental health

1 services and supports.

2 On the next slide, in this area we're really
3 focused on chronic disease management, and here, for
4 example, in 2019 OneCare demonstrated statistically
5 significant improvement in caring for patients with
6 hypertension and diabetes, and I think that's in part
7 because, as we've gotten more experience and worked
8 more closely with providers of all types across our
9 network, we've really learned that we need to focus in
10 on very tangible areas in need of improvement and
11 really promote opportunities to focus in on those
12 rather than take more of a scattershot approach with a
13 larger set of measures.

14 So, over time, the goal of our population health
15 strategy committee and our other clinical committees is
16 to identify those gaps, promote those as top areas of
17 focus, and then move on while maintaining measurement
18 to ensure that that quality improvement that occurred
19 is being maintained.

20 In the area of chronic disease, we are also really
21 thinking about how to make changes to our quality
22 incentives to drive that focus on specific areas of
23 opportunity and really provide more timely or proximate
24 reward for the organizational improvement activities.
25 This is done to really try to right-size our quality

1 incentive pool while our scale is growing while the
2 number of Vermonters increases and also respond to
3 providers' voiced desire to focus on these specific
4 initiatives with very focused and intentional change.

5 And so Tom described this a little bit earlier as
6 our two-pronged strategy to quality. We're really
7 excited to move that forward and have been working hard
8 through providers in our population health strategy
9 committee to really set the structure of that for 2021.
10 I'd also call attention on the bottom of each of these
11 slides that there are a whole host of investment
12 strategies that OneCare has underway to help support
13 the improvement or maintenance of high-quality care in
14 these areas. Next slide, please.

15 With respect to access to primary care, this is a
16 statewide measure where patients are asked to complete
17 annual surveys, and what we've found is that 82 percent
18 in the more recent survey had reported receiving timely
19 care appointments and information. While this is good,
20 when we look at national benchmarks, we do continue to
21 work on this by investing resources in primary care
22 through population health management activities, our
23 incentivizing quality, and by testing new payment
24 models to help primary care deliver optimal care in
25 these types of value-based care arrangements. Next

1 slide.

2 As part of our learning health care system, in
3 2021 we're taking a very focused approach to our core
4 programs and our investments. Within the area of care
5 coordination, we are continuing our community
6 team-based approach to supporting individuals with
7 high-quality care management interventions to achieve
8 improvements in their care and in their outcomes, and
9 in 2021 the core focus areas that we've identified are
10 on refining the identification of special high-risk
11 populations to prioritize for outreach, on conducting
12 quality assurance monitoring activities to ensure
13 fidelity to the model, and on advancing our knowledge
14 of best practices around care management.

15 As you heard Tom describe earlier, we're evolving
16 our approach to quality and really have a laser focus
17 on key metrics as directed by our population health
18 strategy committee. We're moving our financial
19 incentives earlier in our performance cycle to align
20 them with this very focused approach to improvement.

21 We continue to evolve our provider accountability
22 model to create a statewide system of health and ensure
23 that providers are actively committed to and engaged in
24 reform efforts, and, finally, we continue to evolve our
25 analytics capacity to deliver high-quality actionable

1 data to our network to drive performance.

2 For example, in 2021 we'll be enhancing new
3 reporting to primary care to help them in their
4 performance throughout the year. This really aligns
5 with that focus on both provider accountability and the
6 focus on quality. So, altogether, we believe these are
7 the right strategies to drive care delivery success and
8 to improve provider financial predictability and
9 accountability. Thank you, and I'll turn it back to
10 Vicki.

11 MS. LONER: Thanks, everybody, for hanging in
12 with us. I know it was a long presentation, and I
13 wanted to thank my colleagues, Sara Barry and Tom
14 Borys, for their part in the presentation. I also
15 wanted to just take a second to thank all the providers
16 who have come together to make OneCare possible and
17 that make up OneCare Vermont.

18 It's a pretty phenomenal effort, and I would say
19 that, collectively, we're proud to do our part to
20 change the way that health care is paid for and
21 delivered, and, you know, in this really difficult and
22 unprecedented time, we're doing it here with less and
23 bringing on more lives while keeping costs flat, and so
24 I think that's a real accomplishment to the dedication
25 and investments that Vermont providers are making in

1 this health care reform effort, and there's a reason
2 why they're doing it is because they believe that
3 value-based care is the investment that's needed for
4 our future.

5 And so, with that, I just want to leave you with
6 some words from Tomasz Jankowski, who is the CEO at the
7 designated agency in the Northeast Kingdom. Tom, take
8 it away.

9 (Video recording playing.)

10 MS. LONER: That concludes our presentation.
11 Thank you again to my colleagues, and, Chair Mullin,
12 I'll turn it over to you.

13 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Thank you, Vicki, Tom, and
14 Sara. At this point, we will take a short bio break to
15 11:15, at which point we will come back and go for
16 another hour to an hour and a half and then take a
17 half-hour lunch break. So this meeting is in recess
18 until 11:15.

19 (A recess was taken from 11:06 a.m. to 11:15 a.m.)

20 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: So I'll call the meeting
21 back to order, and the next item is questions from the
22 board, and we're going to go in reverse alphabetical
23 order and start with Board Member Maureen Usifer.
24 Maureen?

25 MS. USIFER: Thank you. Thank you for your

1 presentation, and I will address some questions, and I
2 know my other board members are going to be probing
3 other areas as well.

4 First, can you talk a little bit about maybe
5 what's not working or areas where you could improve?
6 It's not really addressed in your presentation, and I
7 would love to hear your perspective on that.

8 MS. LONER: I'm still on mute. Yeah. I'm
9 going to get a T-shirt that says, "I'm on mute". So I
10 would say that one of the opportunities to improve is
11 really starting to show at a health service area level
12 or community level where there's some variations in
13 care and where there's some real opportunities. We've
14 focused at a high level on where there's opportunities
15 at the ACO, but there's also an opportunity to really
16 drill down and see where communities might need to make
17 some changes or adjustments in their overall approach.

18 And so we're planning, for next year, we've rolled
19 out a series of more easy to digest consultative
20 reports for the individual communities, and we've kind
21 of trialed them and got some feedback this year to say,
22 Here's your major areas in how you're doing in terms of
23 utilization and quality, here's where you look same or
24 similar to the ACO, and here's where your specific
25 community has some opportunities. Could we talk about

1 what you could do in your particular community?

2 And, you know, that has to be done in tandem with
3 the communities, because they know their communities
4 the best. And so I would say that's one of the areas
5 that we really want to work on next year, because, as
6 we eventually expand our overall financial
7 accountabilities, the providers need the tools and
8 resources, and they really need it at a level that is
9 digestible to them.

10 Previously, we've used a lot of self-service
11 tools. We've given them a lot of data, and really
12 trying to hone down what those data points are that are
13 important to them. And, I mean, I can't underscore
14 that this health care reform movement is new, and so
15 some of the things that really need to come together
16 when we talk about this private-public partnership is
17 the data that we receive is only as good as the data
18 that we receive from the payers and from VITL, and so
19 really making sure that we have complete and robust
20 data sets to be able to provide to the providers that
21 need it and need it to deliver care better and
22 differently.

23 MS. USIFER: Okay.

24 MR. BORYS: I can build on that a little bit,
25 too, in the finance space to say we've learned that

1 splitting the, the OneCare aggregate target and spend
2 down into the HSAs was really hard. There are some
3 data blind spots we have around confidential claims, or
4 sometimes there's end-of-the-year adjustments that
5 occur that we have no ability to model and, in
6 particular, have no ability to model at the HSA level
7 until sometimes after they've occurred.

8 So that's really one of the reasons for this
9 different risk-sharing strategy is to address that
10 challenge that we've had in taking our overall OneCare
11 performance and splitting it down into the HSAs. It's
12 just been really hard, and we've learned that, for
13 sure, over the last couple of years.

14 MS. USIFER: Okay. And, since you touched on
15 the risk-sharing, I think I'll skip ahead to the
16 risk-sharing question that I had. So you've done
17 several things, it looks like, on the risk corridor,
18 right? You've reduced the risk corridor, and you're
19 now allocating it proportionately to the HSAs.

20 First, do you know how much of a change this is
21 from the prior methodology by HSAs, so, if we looked at
22 an HSA, what their, what their risk corridor would have
23 been under a like risk corridor if it's 2 percent,
24 obviously, risk corridors have changed, but what that
25 would do?

1 MR. BORYS: Yeah, we absolutely have done
2 that, and we've looked at it with our finance
3 committee. So taking the risk corridor down limits the
4 risk for everybody, but what we did was compare at a
5 similar corridor the old HSA accountability model to
6 this new proportional model. Very similar in overall
7 magnitude.

8 Basically, what happens is any HSAs that have a
9 historically high total cost of care relative to the
10 average ended up in this new model with a little bit
11 less total risk and reward, because they're going from
12 their individual HSA high PMPM down to the average, and
13 somebody with a low PMPM historically ends up with a
14 little bit more risk as they come up to the average,
15 but, in terms of the overall magnitude and materiality,
16 it was pretty low.

17 MS. USIFER: And then, you know, how is this
18 incentive going to drive change in, like, the smaller
19 HSAs? So, if everybody's now all tagged in together
20 under this performance, you know, what are the
21 incentives really in an individual HSA? Because it
22 could be, like, well, you know, I'm only a really small
23 percent, and whatever I do isn't really going to drive
24 the needle, potentially. I mean, obviously, the intent
25 is there for everyone, but, you know, how is this going

1 to drive incentives?

2 MR. BORYS: That's a great question. I
3 think, when we were discussing this internally, we
4 recognized that this new approach has many advantages,
5 but one aspect you lose is that individual community
6 accountability that you referenced. I think the
7 strategy that we're trying to push forward is a little
8 bit of a both, where you do this allocated risk at the
9 end of the year, but then we build in measures,
10 specific targets for individual HSAs to basically
11 retain as much of that HSA local incentive as possible.

12 This is a little bit more technical, but in the
13 actual settlement policy, there is a 10 percent pool of
14 shared savings that will go to communities that have
15 outstanding performance in the year, so there remains
16 some financial incentive at the HSA level. Those
17 specific measures are in process through our governance
18 are being finalized, but we wanted to have a couple of
19 really important measures focused around spend, because
20 that is what the shared savings really is for, that
21 would reward the communities who just perform
22 excellently relative to the average.

23 MS. USIFER: And have you considered -- did
24 you want to go ahead, Vicki?

25 MS. LONER: Oh, yeah. I just was going to

1 add a little bit to that. When we were looking at
2 this, we asked communities, you know, would you be
3 going into a risk-based model with payers on your own?
4 And the answer is "no". We wouldn't be building 14
5 separate ACOs, and the reason for that is the numbers
6 are small, and there's a lot of volatility in the
7 numbers too.

8 And what we're trying to do here is create a
9 system of care, and we see that there is a lot of
10 collaboration and referral patterns around the state.
11 So, if we don't start acting like a system of care and
12 being financed as a system of care, we're not going to
13 change. We're going to continue to do things within
14 our communities and not kind of cross community borders
15 in that aspect.

16 So I think those are two other things that came
17 out of this was no one would do this alone. We
18 wouldn't have a Brattleboro or a Bennington or a
19 Morrisville go into these arrangements alone, because
20 their numbers are just too small, and, secondly, we
21 need to start acting like a system of care in order to
22 be successful under this model.

23 MS. USIFER: Just, just adding on to the
24 system of care piece, one of the concerns I've had with
25 the old risk model, and it would continue with this

1 risk model, is that in some of the smaller HSAs the
2 care that they're providing at their hospitals is still
3 relatively low to the total cost of care that are
4 attributed to their lives.

5 So I'll just throw out numbers, and these were
6 examples from before, but, you know, a hospital might
7 have 20 million attributed lives that equal to \$60
8 million worth of spending, but 20 million is in their
9 specific area, 20 to 25 are in other hospitals within
10 OneCare, and then the remainder is outside. And so
11 when, when we looked at what that percentage of risk
12 was on their actual money that they were getting, it
13 was high, you know, and this was under the old model,
14 right, but it could be as high as 10 percent. So they
15 could have, in that model when you're at 60 million,
16 they could have had almost a \$2 million risk corridor,
17 a little under, onto their \$20 million.

18 So, you know, one potential alternative is a lot
19 of that care was done at UVM. You know, I'll just
20 throw out there that that's where a lot of that care
21 was being done. So they had the opposite effect. They
22 had their attributed lives, their percentage of risk to
23 their attributed lives, and then they did service for a
24 lot more of the patients.

25 And so on a systemwide, right, we want everybody

1 rolling in the same direction, and, even though those
2 people are from outside their area, I'm just not sure
3 why we -- you know, one way would be to align the risk
4 with where people are getting things done, especially
5 now that we're kind of taking out that individual
6 hospital performance, per se.

7 So just wanted to know if that came up at all.
8 You know, I know it's a tough decision where you do
9 things, but there still may be a concern that should we
10 -- I guess, another question I'm going to ask, which
11 you can add into this is, Was part of the reason we
12 reduced the risk corridors was the pandemic and
13 everything else, do you see us going back to higher
14 risk corridors at some point and that become more of an
15 issue then, right? Lowering the risk corridors has
16 obviously reduced a lot. But just can you talk to that
17 about alignment?

18 MR. BORYS: Sure. The points you raised are
19 right on. Each community is structured differently.
20 In a more rural community with a smaller hospital, just
21 naturally more of the care is delivered out of that
22 HSA. We've talked about this a lot at OneCare. We
23 hosted, before the pandemic, a series of finance
24 retreats with finance committee members and other
25 financial stakeholders and discussed a number of

1 different options.

2 There are some interesting options out there, but,
3 generally, the sentiment is this is a population health
4 model and all of these people reside or receive their
5 primary care in a community, and that's, that's the,
6 really, the important attachment point, and there
7 wasn't a huge desire to make a shift. But I absolutely
8 recognize that kind of dynamic of Community A has a
9 different proportion of their care delivered at their
10 local hospital than Community B.

11 But, still I, just everything about our programs
12 focus on the population and where they attach for their
13 main health care services, and, if we're working like a
14 system, as Vicki said, I think the downsides of this
15 end up becoming smaller. If we're all working together
16 to make sure that this, all the care is coordinated
17 well, whether delivered locally or at a neighboring
18 HSA, we still think we can have the right results and
19 kind of balance that equation a little bit.

20 MS. USIFER: Okay.

21 MR. BORYS: At least for --

22 MS. LONER: Yeah, I was just going to agree
23 with what Tom said, and, you know, part of this is
24 learning how to work with different providers that are
25 serving that population. So you need to work with your

1 academic medical center, right, if that's where your
2 care. So continuing to not acknowledge that people are
3 receiving care and we need to start to work together as
4 a system kind of just perpetuates the fee-for-service
5 mentality that we've had. So I do understand, and it
6 is difficult and complex, but we're trying to make it
7 as simple as possible to best support the patient.

8 MS. USIFER: Okay. And then, when you, when
9 you talk about -- and I like the fact that you do have
10 the incentive for providers and, you know, they can go
11 up to -- I'm talking the upside, right? So they could
12 have another \$1.50 upside. And you talked a little bit
13 about in the book where that's funded, but, just
14 wondering, is that taking away somewhat from, from what
15 the hospitals could receive, right? Because you're,
16 you're kind of taking one of the payers, taking that
17 and not allocating that out, and how did that go over?
18 Because, if that expands -- I think it's a good thing
19 to incentivize. I just know you're balancing a lot of
20 things. So I wanted to --

21 MR. BORYS: Yeah, you're absolutely right
22 again. By offering some of the shared savings
23 opportunity to attributing primary care across the
24 network, it does take that opportunity away from the
25 hospitals. I, I don't want to underscore, like, the

1 magnitude of this, because different -- you know, one
2 number is big to one person and small to another
3 person. Relative to the hospital risk, it's a pretty
4 small proportion overall but still an important,
5 important part of its expanding accountability across
6 the network.

7 On the other side, it also reduces their downside
8 risk, I mean, not a lot, but it does contribute on that
9 side as well in that we use some of those dollars that
10 we didn't pay out to help fund downside losses if we're
11 earning. So that shields the hospitals a little bit.

12 MS. USIFER: Okay. And I know this is really
13 kind of a lot put on OneCare's shoulder, because you're
14 the only ACO in the state, but, you know, how do we
15 drive more growth in scale, you know, for attribution?
16 So I know you're doing a lot of things and you've had
17 some growth, but we know we're still not at the scale
18 that we'd like to be. So what other programs do you
19 have to drive scale?

20 MS. LONER: I would say, Maureen, that it
21 comes back to that public-private partnership. You
22 need to have payers that are willing, right, to be able
23 to offer these programs out to ACOs, and in Vermont we
24 have essentially two payer groups that provide services
25 or insurance to Vermonters, but we also have a lot of

1 national payers out there who have not wanted to
2 participate in Vermont's health care reform efforts,
3 and, you know, they have reasons for doing that.

4 And so I think that's something that needs to be
5 looked at as a state to say, Is it practical to be able
6 to bring in those lines? And our particular focus at
7 the ACO -- I know that the State has scale target
8 goals, and I think that scale is important to the
9 providers as well, but, really, our push and thrust has
10 to be around accountability, because, if we continue to
11 grow and we don't have any significant changes in the
12 way that care is delivered or providers taking
13 accountability for it, that's not a good plan for an
14 ACO when risk is being transferred over to the provider
15 network.

16 So our focus has to be around increasing those
17 accountabilities, providing the resources that are
18 needed to make the changes, and to continue to create
19 some attractive programs that providers will want to
20 participate in, but it's, you know, a multipronged
21 approach. I think all stakeholders, not just the ACO,
22 has a role to play in what some of our policy
23 decisions, payer decisions has to be made in order to
24 increase scale.

25 MS. USIFER: And maybe as a follow-up, and it

1 doesn't need to be -- maybe it's even confidential.
2 I'm not sure. But can you maybe provide particularly
3 those out-of-state providers and, and what, you know,
4 how many lives are attributed there? Because I think
5 that is a very good point, right? It may be hard to
6 get those people in, and I don't know if we've
7 quantified, you know, how many lives are there and then
8 plans at some point to be able to go for whether it's
9 Cigna or whoever may be in these places.

10 But I think that gives a good perspective for
11 people to say, you know, we may have this vision, but,
12 you know, because we may be very small to their total,
13 it may be hard for some of these larger players to
14 commit to it, and, you know, it would be good to have
15 that as a follow-up.

16 MS. LONER: I, I do think that we probably
17 have some estimates. I don't know that we have the
18 perfect numbers, but we could certainly provide you
19 with the information that we had.

20 MS. USIFER: You talked about the Medicare
21 increase and the potential offset to maybe looking at
22 the cost shift and, and working on cost shift and
23 commercial payers, and can you talk a little bit more
24 about that and if you have any plans to, to be able to
25 do that, or, you know, how would that work, I guess?

1 MR. BORYS: It's a good question. It's not
2 an easy one to answer. One of the challenges that we
3 face here is that we're, we're kind of at the tail end
4 of many of these rate developments. The commercial
5 rates have already been built, and the commercial
6 payers very much want to link the targets that were
7 given back to those QHP rate filings, and, you know, I
8 think this goes to some of the conversations we're
9 starting around regulatory alignment. How do we make
10 the system, our Vermont system, work together a little
11 bit better?

12 I guess, my simple view is the Vermont all-payer
13 model offers some pretty good terms in the Medicare
14 space, and step one is to leverage those favorable
15 terms as a way to start working to address the cost
16 shift, but it has to be a really statewide system
17 approach. I don't think it can be just in the ACO
18 budget. I don't think it can be just in the insurance
19 rate review process either. I think it needs to be a
20 very coordinated effort.

21 But one of the tools that we're given under the
22 all-payer model is the Medicare approach and the trend
23 rate, and I think that's a really important arrow in
24 the quiver for us to think about if we want to address
25 the cost shift.

1 MS. USIFER: Okay. I'm going to shift to ask
2 several questions on the P&L and cash flow, things like
3 that. So, first, you talked about the shifting of
4 timing of payment of the VBIF funds from a program
5 settlement to a distributive model, which I think the
6 program settlement was about 18 months and a
7 distributive model would be in a shorter timeframe, but
8 what impact does this have on cash flow? As programs
9 grow, is that going to create any issues? Because I
10 get the intent is right, right, trying to get it closer
11 to when the performance is, but you don't actually
12 receive the funds until later.

13 MR. BORYS: Another great question. So in
14 the old model that we have, the sole VBIF model, we
15 were required to pay our contracts to fund a certain
16 percentage of the total cost of care, so 2 percent.
17 The way we bucketed those, the VBIF pool, was through
18 hospital dues. So, when we built our budget, we said
19 we're going to have \$5 million for the value-based
20 incentive fund. That flowed right into the hospital
21 dues calculation, and that's how we generated those
22 funds.

23 With our growth over the last few years, more
24 lives just increased programs overall. The amount of
25 the value-based incentive fund landing in the dues

1 calculation became very significant, and it was driving
2 up the dues in a big way. So, in our budget strategy
3 for this year, that's where the two-pronged approach
4 came from, how can we move some of the quality
5 accountability to the back end, meaning that it affects
6 settlement.

7 If we were going to earn shared savings and we
8 have a poor quality score, we're not going to get it
9 all, which still has the quality accountability, and
10 pair that with a more right-sized value-based incentive
11 fund that will fund in the same dues mechanism but at a
12 lower level. So those two components keep the bulk of
13 the quality and accountability from a financial
14 standpoint in place, but helps to balance the pressures
15 on dues and deliver this more nimble model for
16 rewarding the network.

17 MS. USIFER: And, you know, probably the
18 biggest potential issue for, for cash flow problems,
19 and you've brought it up in the book that you sent out,
20 was if you didn't receive payments timely from one of
21 the payers, and, I guess, what's the risk of that?
22 What would you do? Because, you know, that has
23 obviously major downstream implications. Has that
24 happened? Has there been any delays as we've gone
25 through?

1 Obviously, we don't want it to happen, but you
2 guys had brought it up, and I just wanted to know what
3 your plans would be.

4 MR. BORYS: Yeah, yeah. I mean, when
5 answering that question, that's the big one for me is
6 that we, we get substantial money coming from the
7 payers that we are, then we turn around and pay the
8 network in lieu of fee-for-service reimbursement. If a
9 payer were to miss a payment or have some sort of a
10 problem from that standpoint, we would have a cash flow
11 issue. We'd have to evaluate the nature of it. Is it
12 a one-month issue? Is it a multiple-month issue?
13 There's a lot of question marks that we'd have to
14 understand before saying, Here's exactly how we'd
15 address it.

16 But that is certainly a concern to be aware of.
17 It has happened. Very early on, we had one month where
18 the Medicare, if I recall correctly, payment was
19 delayed, but they told us in advance, We're going to
20 pay it in the next month. So we got a double payment
21 the following month. We were able to communicate with
22 our network and manage that.

23 Since then, knock on wood, we have not had that
24 occur. We've been very consistent with the payers, and
25 I -- you know, when we engage in these programs where

1 we're converting fee-for-service for fixed payments
2 that flow through OneCare, that's a big responsibility,
3 and we pay very close attention to it, and, if we have
4 any timing issues with payers, we make sure we're
5 communicating with them to fix it, but we haven't had
6 many to date.

7 MS. USIFER: Okay, thanks. And, just looking
8 at the income statement, and I'm going to kind of
9 separate out, you know, all the revenue that you get in
10 from the payers, because that obviously gets dispersed
11 out to the hospitals. So, you know, it looks like your
12 revenue streams have been impacted about \$6 million or
13 so, I mean, \$3 million from the fact that you no longer
14 receive any HIT funds and then a reduction in hospital
15 dues, which I think is where we should be looking for
16 reductions as well.

17 But you, you then reduced your payment reform
18 programs by \$6 million, so you've basically gone from
19 \$36 million to 30. So you kind of took that reduction
20 that you're getting from other services besides payers
21 and taken it out of the payment reform programs as
22 we're growing the size of the dollars that we're
23 receiving. So that's kind of a little bit
24 counterintuitive, right? You think you'd be spending
25 more there as we attribute more lives.

1 So, I guess, what programs do you reduce or cut?
2 How are your measurements for that? How do you know
3 what's working, what's not? And, and did you think
4 about, you know, is this the right thing to do is to
5 cut those programs? And, and I know you have to make a
6 lot of decisions, but it's just --

7 MR. BORYS: Yeah. I mean, getting at the
8 crux of the budget challenge this year is that we have
9 less revenue to play with, and how do we manage the
10 expense side? There's a couple different areas that
11 I'll highlight. The first is the value-based incentive
12 fund that we talked about before. The number is lower
13 on the expense side. What's not on our income
14 statement, because there's really no great place to put
15 it, is what the financial accountability is under the
16 settlement model. So we can lose those shared savings
17 dollars or more.

18 It doesn't have a great home on this illustrative
19 income statement. So it makes it look like the quality
20 component is smaller than it really is if you aggregate
21 how much we have at stake for quality. So that's one
22 piece, but it also helps to alleviate the hospital dues
23 to do it this way. So there's, that's probably the
24 most material piece.

25 We had some tough decisions to make around some of

1 the really cool and exciting initiatives that came
2 through via the innovation fund programs and, for
3 example, and the ideas were great. We had lots of
4 them. But, when we came back and really prioritized
5 what are we going to fund in 2021, we really wanted to
6 sustain those core investment areas that are statewide.
7 They've been established. Providers are relying on
8 those funds. We've asked them to do something with
9 them and make sure we can keep those in place. So
10 that's why you don't see a big drop in the base OneCare
11 PMPM or, or even the care coordination program.

12 So not easy decisions, but we, just like every
13 other entity out there, you have limited resources to
14 play with, and we've establish what can we get from
15 revenue through our contract negotiations, the
16 hospitals, etc., and then what's the best way to use
17 those funds, and, like I said, not easy decisions.

18 MS. LONER: I just wanted to emphasize for
19 the group is that OneCare is a provider-led
20 organization. So none of these decisions are made just
21 by the management team. We have clinical committees.
22 We have population health committees. We have finance
23 committees which represent providers from every sector
24 of OneCare Vermont who are looking at what our revenue
25 streams are, what our expense streams are and making

1 some decisions about where to focus moving forward with
2 declining revenues, like what do they need to be
3 successful, and I think they have helped to shape what
4 the core programs and focus areas need to be for
5 OneCare moving into the future.

6 And, you know, in the early stages we did a lot of
7 innovation. We looked at a lot of things, and, when we
8 look at the overall return on investment and how they
9 really fit into the role of an ACO, they're great
10 things to do, they provide individual value, but
11 they're not sustainable under the current environment.

12 MS. USIFER: Okay. And then another thing on
13 the income statement was the increase in salary and
14 benefits, which are going up by \$1.5 million, and what,
15 what I don't see on the balance sheet that was provided
16 was what your original '20 projections were. So you
17 gave that on the FTEs and things like that, right? And
18 so we saw a pre-Covid, and we saw that decline, but,
19 when we look at the actual, the approved budget,
20 because it was done so late, really ties into your
21 current projection.

22 So, you know, if I go back to, you know, 2019, you
23 had about \$8.2 million in the salaries and benefits, or
24 budget submitted was 8.4, and that's what your
25 post-Covid, but there was an extra step in there,

1 right, where you were originally anticipating you were
2 going to have higher staff and higher expenses,
3 because, you know, we're actually seeing from the 2019
4 actual and the 2020 budget and projection are about the
5 same.

6 2019 and 2020 are going to end up about the same,
7 but then we see a relatively large increase, the
8 million five, which I know you did discuss some, but I
9 wanted to give you the opportunity, because part of it
10 is contracted services have shifted, part of it is the
11 pay freeze, and part of it is the incremental staffing,
12 but, obviously, as these expenses go up, when you're
13 reducing some of the other revenue areas, you had to
14 cut programs. So just, just understanding, you know,
15 the staffing, the staffing changes, and if you can
16 correlate it to what was that, where did we think '20
17 was going to be prior to Covid?

18 MR. BORYS: Yeah. A lot of moving parts in
19 here is the first thing that comes to mind. We really
20 did a lot of work over the last few months to evaluate
21 what OneCare has for staffing resources and make sure
22 it positions us for success in the future in terms of
23 addressing our priority areas. So we, we have made
24 some shifts in terms of just organizational structure
25 internally.

1 You know, really, our overall staffing model
2 hasn't changed that much over the last couple of years.
3 What really kind of looks like a big change is that we
4 anticipated some significant growth in 2020 for some
5 exciting new initiatives that just didn't happen in
6 response to Covid. We went back and took out things
7 that we just had to to make sure that we, you know, we
8 could offer that digitally to hospitals.

9 So, when you look at year over year what our real
10 salary and expense was on a per-FTE basis, it stayed
11 really consistent. So we haven't made many changes to
12 that to adjust. But, in terms of the work that OneCare
13 does as an organization, we do a lot more now, we have
14 to do a lot more than now than we had to do three years
15 ago. When we had just a Medicaid and a Medicare
16 program and an upside only or maybe even upside only
17 programs, that requires much less effort than it does
18 now to have five programs that are very complicated.

19 The commercial programs, the Blue Cross Primary is
20 one that has a lot of components within it, and the
21 financial demands and the analytic demands and the need
22 to meet the network's needs has grown tremendously,
23 and we're just always faced with this balance of, How
24 do we resource OneCare with enough staff to manage
25 these super-complex programs, support the network,

1 support the Vermont statewide partnership? There's
2 just a lot of demands, and the fact that we really
3 haven't grown our staffing, I think, is telling. I
4 think it's -- we're doing a lot with not a lot of
5 staffing resources right now, and that's not easy.

6 MS. USIFER: Just a question on -- I know you
7 lost the HIT funding, but it does look like your
8 software expenses are staying consistent year over
9 year. So, I guess, you know, there has been some
10 concern of losing those funds. Are you cutting back at
11 all on your deliverables for analytics and data? And,
12 you know, all looking at your software expenses are
13 fairly flat. So I'm thinking that you're not, but
14 would like to hear that from your perspective.

15 MR. BORYS: You know, we're not making any
16 significant cuts, and, in my opinion, I don't think we
17 can. We rely so heavily on the data coming into the
18 ACO to do just about everything we do, whether it's
19 making sure we have fair total cost of care targets,
20 reporting to our network, reporting to you folks as
21 regulators. We need that data, and to inform, inform
22 the care, more importantly than anything else, make
23 sure that the providers have good clinical information.
24 So we, we had to find a way to build this budget model,
25 absent the HIT funding, that didn't erode our

1 analytical finance capabilities in order to be
2 successful.

3 MS. USIFER: Wrapping up my questions. But
4 you, you have the \$3.9 million reserve that, you know,
5 we've, that has been built up over the years, and
6 there's no additions to that this year, and probably
7 doesn't need to be, since you've reduced kind of the
8 reserve, the corridors. However, you're not doing
9 reinsurance. So, you know, what's the maximum that
10 you, that OneCare would be responsible for for those
11 hospitals that they're providing backing for, I guess,
12 would be the first question there, and then the second
13 part is, What other uses do you see, if any, for the
14 reserves, and what approvals do you need to get them?

15 MR. BORYS: Good question. We are or do have
16 in the budget some risk protections to protect certain
17 providers or just help them get into this risk model as
18 we've offered in the past. The number that OneCare,
19 absolute worst-case scenario, would have to absorb is
20 somewhere in the one-and-three-quarter million range.
21 So it's not anywhere near a point where we fully
22 consume these reserves.

23 The other way to use reserves, this is an
24 interesting one from just a kind of an accounting
25 standpoint, I suppose, but the reserves come from the

1 providers that pay dues. That's how we are able to
2 generate reserves. We have no other way to do it than
3 to honestly operate with a positive net income that we
4 can then put that cash aside and say, this is, these
5 are our reserves.

6 So, if we got to a point where we felt the
7 reserves were too high and wanted to -- and I'm not at
8 that point, just to say -- but, if we wanted to kind of
9 distribute those back out to the network, it becomes a
10 little bit of a tricky exercise where the opposite is
11 to run a loss, right? So we, we're not here to present
12 that scenario to you, but that's one of the ways we
13 would actually consider refunding reserves, so to
14 speak, is to build a budget with an operating loss that
15 effectively reduces hospital dues as a way to give it
16 back, and that's not, from a finance perspective,
17 that's not really a comfortable way to run the
18 organization, but it is an option at our disposal.

19 MS. USIFER: Okay. One last question. Just
20 on the cash flow, you're showing a negative \$5.1
21 million change in '21. Help me out with that, because
22 the other areas you've actually been a slightly
23 positive with cash flow. Is that, you know,
24 reimbursing the loan, or, you know, what's driving a
25 negative cash flow in '21?

1 MR. BORYS: Sure. Yeah, we do anticipate --
2 we took a loan out from the UVM Health Network to help
3 fund the financial guarantee required by the Medicare
4 program. What we've done since then is get a line of
5 credit with the bank that allows us to issue a letter
6 of credit to CMS to satisfy this financial guarantee.
7 So we are paying off a \$4.2 million loan that we had
8 with the health network. I can look in more depth and
9 get back to you on any other details in there, but
10 that's the one that comes to mind as the most material.

11 MS. USIFER: Okay, thanks. I know there are
12 many, many more questions and bunch of questions on
13 quality and things like that, but I'm going to let my
14 colleagues ask those. So I am done, Kevin. Thanks.

15 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Sorry about that. UPS just
16 delivered one of my binders that was sent by the
17 office. Might have heard the dog barking. We're going
18 to move to Tom.

19 MR. PELHAM: Thank you, and thank the three
20 of you for your presentation. There is a waterfall
21 here is that two of my nine questions Maureen has
22 already hit. So it ought to speed things up here a
23 little bit.

24 So my first question has to do with fixed
25 prospective payments and the risk adjustment number,

1 and in Appendix 6.6 you profile that at \$460 million
2 across all hospitals in terms of, of that, and the
3 approved NPR for 2021 for all those hospitals is about
4 \$2.8 billion, and so that's about, that is a 16.5
5 percent of revenues coming in through the fixed
6 prospective payment.

7 And so I'm just wondering where does that number
8 fit, that 16.5 percent, is, relative to you inducing
9 the reforms at the levels we'd like to see them in
10 Vermont?

11 MR. BORYS: So the, the way we get that
12 number is we look at the attributed lives and then how
13 much care they receive at the hospitals participating
14 in a fixed payment model. We, we talk about scale a
15 lot at the aggregate level and say, Here's Vermont's
16 population. Here's how many lives are in a value-based
17 care program. But, if you look at that on a
18 community-by-community basis, a community that's all in
19 with Medicare, Medicaid, the Blue Cross programs has a
20 much higher proportion of their lives at, in
21 value-based care than the statewide average.

22 And I think the same holds true with hospital
23 fixed payments. If you have your Medicare and your
24 Medicaid and your one that's interested in going to
25 some other models that we're trying to put up for

1 future years, that individual hospital or primary care
2 practice in the CPR program can have a pretty big
3 proportion, at least a material proportion, of their
4 revenue stream under a fixed payment. That, of course,
5 can get diluted when you look at it statewide, but I
6 think that's another important perspective is, What's
7 the community, and what's the individual practice, and,
8 if you're all in, I think it does become material
9 enough to drive some change.

10 MR. PELHAM: That makes sense. Thank you.
11 Looking at the distribution of downside risk, the
12 downside risk number was around \$19 million, and so, if
13 you look at how it gets spread over the different
14 hospitals, 35 percent of that \$19 million is associated
15 with UVM Medical Center at around \$6.6 million, and, as
16 another example, for Northwestern it's \$1.6 million,
17 which is about 8.6 percent of the total \$19 million in
18 downside risk.

19 But, when you kind of flip that over and you look
20 at that, you look at those numbers relative to the
21 approved NPR for each of those hospitals, it ends up
22 being four-tenths of a percent for the UVM Medical
23 Center and 1.5 percent for Northwestern of their
24 revenues, which kind of gives you a different spin on
25 it in terms of risk and, and the potential impact of

1 the downside risk on the hospital. And I'm just
2 wondering if you have any thoughts of, you know, for
3 example, the payer mix for UVM Medical Center is richer
4 than it is for Northwestern Hospital, and I'm just
5 wondering whether or not this comes into your
6 calculation as to how that risk gets spread.

7 MR. BORYS: Yeah, this is very similar in
8 kind of spirit to what Maureen was pointing out
9 earlier, too, is every community is a little bit
10 different. Some hospitals have a big proportion of
11 their local care, other small. Some are referral
12 destinations. UVM, for example, gets a lot of
13 referrals from New York as well. So every community is
14 different and has a different financial dynamic.

15 At the end of the day, though, we go back to this
16 is a population model, and keeping in line with that
17 has been kind of the aim thus far. But you raise a
18 good point and, certainly, one that we've talked about
19 internally, not only with OneCare management, with our
20 committees and our stakeholders of, Is this right?

21 And I think one of the paths that I do worry about
22 is that, if we build in some sort of an NPSR adjusted
23 model, we only have data about the attributed lives, so
24 we have a big blind spot without -- we can collect the
25 data with some effort, but it would add a lot of

1 complexity, really, to the sharing model and really
2 trying to keep it back to our job here as an ACO is to
3 take care of this population as best we can and do it
4 in a systematic, statewide way. So that's been the
5 direction to date, but the point you raise is fair in
6 that it is a different dynamic for every different
7 provider.

8 One other nuance that I think is important is that
9 we don't -- like, our risk model doesn't assign risk to
10 a hospital specifically. It assigns risk to an HSA, a
11 community. The hospital has been identified as the
12 risk-bearing entity, but, from that perspective saying,
13 Here are the HSA lives that this group is accountable
14 for, part of that might be referring care outside of
15 the HSA when it's really this, this group, and keeping
16 the risk model aligned with that, I think, is important
17 to recognize.

18 MR. PELHAM: So, when you're in negotiations
19 with a hospital, does this issue ever come up at the
20 micro level between the ACO and the hospital itself as
21 to, you know, payer mix and risk assignment?

22 MR. BORYS: Payer mix and, and things like
23 that have not come up. We have good, robust
24 discussions about what is the appropriate risk model
25 for sharing risk. I have not heard a lot of, Well, I

1 have a different payer mix than somebody else, and,
2 therefore, I should have a different, you know, maximum
3 or risk or opportunity number.

4 MR. PELHAM: So my next question goes to one
5 that Maureen touched on a bit, which is the cost shift,
6 and I'm just wondering. You know, in your narrative
7 you said, for example, opportunities to leverage the
8 Medicare to terms, and I know what those are is that,
9 if you're spending Medicaid money, it doesn't count
10 against the total cost of care.

11 Leverage the Medicare terms in the APM to help
12 offset the commercial cost shift in flow funds to
13 population health investments. Can you put a number on
14 that, and do you have any sense of, of how much or, you
15 know, some kind of dollar value relative to mitigating
16 the cost shift that, that you folks have leveraged?

17 MR. BORYS: I don't have a specific number.
18 I think my thinking on it has been mostly a thought
19 exercise to say, How would you use the resources we
20 have available to us to then offset commercial rate
21 increases and affect that cost shift? And, when I
22 think about it at a macro level, that Medicare, the
23 Medicare terms are, like I said before, an arrow in the
24 quiver for us to think about as a state in terms of how
25 to use it.

1 While I don't have a number, I, I definitely think
2 it's material in that the Medicare spending is
3 significant, especially as we have an aging state, and
4 any increase, percentage increase you can get in that
5 space is going to go a long way.

6 MR. PELHAM: So, when the, when DVHA
7 presented its budget to the legislature in the last
8 session, you know, they made the announcement that they
9 would not be increasing any of their reimbursement
10 rates for 2021, except for those that are federally
11 mandated. So I'm just wondering, kind of going to your
12 Appendix 4.3 where you have your expected growth
13 trends, does that, is that something that's calculated
14 into those, or is that -- you know, obviously, we still
15 have to go through all the actuarial process with the
16 Medicaid rate, but does that, does that affect your
17 thinking at all?

18 MR. BORYS: We, when we set the trend, we're
19 trying to come up with the best estimate to go from a
20 base year. We have some experience data to rely upon
21 to the performance year. We use some -- we have a
22 couple of years of the actuarial development. So we
23 look back at those and also looked at some emerging
24 trends.

25 One of the hardest factors for us to incorporate

1 is anything related to repricing. There's a lot of
2 detail in there. Even if the general sentiment is that
3 there's no significant rate changes, there's always
4 something going on that's a little bit more detailed.
5 So we try our best to build it in, but, really, the
6 rubber will hit the road in that actuarial process you
7 mentioned.

8 MR. PELHAM: Well, I mean, because it's a big
9 jump from the prior rate to, you know, what's in that
10 table, and, you know, with their, you know, DVHA saying
11 that they're going to flat-line their reimbursement
12 rates, I just hope that doesn't turn out to be too
13 severe a problem.

14 Looking at the provider network, just an aside
15 curiosity, looking at those that have answered "yes" or
16 "no" to using Care Navigator, I'm wondering, you know,
17 why would Porter and Central Vermont Hospitals answer
18 "yes" to that question while Helen Porter and Woodridge
19 Nursing Homes answered "no"?

20 MS. BARRY: So this is Sara. I'm happy to
21 take that question. I think it's a matter of the focus
22 in our care coordination program has really been around
23 trying to ensure strong linkage and connection between
24 our primary care providers, our mental health care
25 providers, our home health providers, and our area

1 agencies on aging, and so that has been a tremendous
2 workload, frankly, to, you know, continue to inform and
3 engage and train and revise those sorts of programs.

4 And so, as we move forward, I think there's
5 continued opportunity to kind of expand the ripples of
6 individuals that are connected, but there hasn't been a
7 specific kind of high use case for something like a
8 skilled nursing facility at a large population level
9 yet. There could be very well in the future.

10 MR. PELHAM: Thank you. Obviously, you know,
11 for some folks the operational costs and the population
12 reform investments of the ACO are somewhat
13 controversial, and people are always making this
14 analogy of what that, quote, unquote, money could be
15 used for elsewhere. I will say that, if, if you
16 applied your operational budget to lowering QHP rates,
17 it, it wouldn't even address the rates that we had this
18 year, and that would be a one-time event, and ongoing
19 then you'd still run into the same problem.

20 But I, I'm kind of -- you know, the binder is just
21 filled with incredible information, more than I can
22 consume, great tables. Your analytics, you know, kind
23 of looking at the, at the quadrants that Sara presented
24 earlier, you can look at, you know, the very high-risk
25 by each hospital and the, and the high-risk folks, and,

1 you know, I just kind of totaled those up systemwide in
2 just those two areas in terms of, of the amount of
3 money spent in the first quarter, of which are the most
4 recent numbers you have out, and that's \$139.8 million
5 just in those two quadrants.

6 And I'm, the thing I'm missing here is, is
7 someplace where I could go to, and the public can go
8 to, in the binder or in the ACO information and say,
9 Yes, here is a reasonable and fair profile of the
10 return on investment of these investments, because I
11 have a feeling that that would be a big number, but it,
12 it's not here. I mean, so there's got to be avoided
13 costs that are accrued through Care Navigator that --
14 and, even during this pandemic, I'm, I bet some
15 individual lives were saved because of Care Navigator,
16 but, if that gets lost in the discussion because we're
17 looking at the expense lines, you know, and not on the
18 return-on-investment line.

19 So that's more of a kind of a cheerleading thing
20 is that someone needs to go, you know, look at, through
21 all this quality stuff, the improvements, especially
22 where they're statistically significant, and put a
23 number on it and that they can stand behind and say,
24 This is what you're buying in terms of, you know,
25 versus the do-nothing alternative.

1 I notice, for example, that DVHA, in their budget
2 to the legislature, takes credit for savings from the,
3 from the waiver, the prior approval waiver. It's, you
4 know, in their budget it's a savings of \$370,000 in
5 fiscal 2021. You folks don't have -- I mean, I'm sure
6 that it's a bigger number for the providers out there,
7 you know, but there's no number on it. So it just kind
8 of gets lost in the atmosphere, and it's, it's a, an
9 analysis, I think, that would, you know, would help you
10 folks.

11 Maureen asked the question, you know, you had a
12 great discussion about the, you know, statewide
13 approach versus the HSA approach, and I get, I get the
14 volatility issues in the small size. One thing I was
15 very happy to see in your presentation is this, the
16 transition or the emphasis of the self-management
17 programs with the Blueprint. That's something, you
18 know, I kind of harped on for the last two years, you
19 know, and one piece that I think is missing in your
20 approach is aligning that work with the benchmark plans
21 supporting the QHP benefits.

22 You know, they, they don't support a pre-diabetes
23 approach similar to the one that the Blueprint
24 operates, which is, you know, aligned with the CDC,
25 which is supposedly the best there is. And so you can

1 get some help on nutrition counseling through the,
2 through Blue Cross Blue Shield. I don't know about
3 MVP, but you can't get any help in terms of fitness,
4 and those are the two big issues in terms of
5 pre-diabetes.

6 So, if you can -- and now, especially now with the
7 Blue Cross Blue Shield and MVP under the tent with
8 their QHP populations, you know, hopefully, people can
9 put a lid on, on aligning the, the prevention-related
10 benefits without kind of making it, opening it up to a
11 wide assortment of demands on that resource.

12 Maureen hit the salaries and occupancy is the
13 same. And so this is why -- my last one is just
14 because it's such a big number, and I, I just want to,
15 kind of want to ask it and get it off my chest. So the
16 ACO is owned 50/50 by UVM Medical Center and Dartmouth,
17 as I understand it, and, when you look at the UVM
18 Medical Center's budget, they, that, that equals about
19 25 percent of the total health care spend in Vermont,
20 which is around a little over \$6 million. The total
21 hospital spend is \$3 million, and the UVM Medical
22 Center is about 1.4, 1.5 of that, so they're about 25
23 percent.

24 And they presented, in presenting their budget to
25 us, you know, they've profiled how their expense growth

1 is growing since 2016 at a 5.8 percent annual rate,
2 and, if, so, given their size and that long-term growth
3 rate, it, I, it's, it just seems not in accord with
4 also the ACO's goal of total cost of care, you know,
5 within the ranges of the slides that we've talked
6 about, 3.5 percent and up to 4-plus percent, you know,
7 as the upper guardrail.

8 So I'm wondering how internally you folks deal
9 with UVM Medical Center, given that they are one of the
10 largest contributors to the statewide total cost of
11 care.

12 MS. LONER: I would say, and, Tom, you can
13 add on to this, it goes back to the fact that what
14 we're looking at in the ACO are the populations that
15 are attributed to the ACO. So every hospital,
16 institution, primary care practice has panels and
17 operating costs that exist outside the ACO. So, when
18 we're trying to design our budget, we're designing it
19 within the ACO, which is very different, to your point,
20 that the all-payer model is looking at the total state
21 and the population of care.

22 And so that's, again, one of those places where I
23 think that we have to look at what role we all play in
24 this, and for the ACO it's those that are attributed to
25 the ACO, and then I agree the State does have a larger

1 role to play in terms of bringing down the overall cost
2 of care and keeping it true to the promises that the
3 State made with the federal government to keep it at a
4 3.5 to 4-ish percentage. I can't remember the top
5 number.

6 So that, that's my thoughts on that. Tom, I don't
7 know if you have any others you'd like to bring in.

8 MR. BORYS: Just one simple one that the very
9 first step is to install a value-based care paradigm,
10 and does that solve every single problem underneath?
11 No, but it starts to build a framework where providers
12 -- and UVM is an incredibly important provider in this
13 state in terms of our overall success -- but start to
14 have the incentive to focus on population health, focus
15 on prevention. That's the beginning of the process.

16 So I think, while there's a lot to figure out in
17 terms of, How do we make the health care system
18 sustainable at a macro level, how do we succeed under
19 the all-payer model at the macro level, it's really
20 important as a very first step is to install that
21 value-based paradigm and start rewarding providers and
22 incentivize them to think about it in this way, and,
23 absent that, I think we have a much bigger problem.

24 MR. PELHAM: Well, I appreciate that you
25 folks are looking at an attributed lives population

1 mostly, you know, and the APM target is a statewide
2 target, but it just, you know, worries me that the
3 bigger player that's, like, 25 percent of the total pie
4 is growing at a rate that is well in excess of what the
5 target is in the all-payer model, that we're not going
6 to get there unless, you know, something changes, and
7 I'm not quite sure what that is. But thank you, thank
8 you both for your time, and I'll turn it back to Kevin.

9 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Thank you, Tom. Member
10 Lunge, Robin?

11 MS. LUNGE: Thank you. So I'm trying to kind
12 of frame my questions into three buckets, because, when
13 I think about delivery system reform, I go back to the
14 lessons that we learned from the decade implementing
15 the Blueprint for Health Primary Care Medical Program
16 and the Community Health Team, and that is that for
17 payment and delivery -- I, I think someone needs to
18 mute. That sounds better.

19 For payment and delivery system reform to actually
20 be successful, I think there are three kind of legs of
21 the stool that we, that we really developed through the
22 SIM grant program as well, and those are payment
23 changes themselves; providing actionable data, which is
24 a combination of health information technology data and
25 the ability to use the data; and providing tools for

1 actual care redesign at the provider level. So I'm
2 going to -- that's, I just wanted to say that out loud
3 so that you had the framework for where I was coming
4 from.

5 So I think I want to actually start with the data
6 and the health information technology and use of data
7 components. I think one of the areas that we, as a
8 state, have struggled for a long time is making this
9 transition from data to actionable data, and I know
10 that you mentioned, Sara, that you're focusing on that
11 for 2021 in terms of moving from providing tools where
12 providers themselves can go into the tool and come up
13 with different reports and whatever to more usable sort
14 of prepackaged data elements, and I wonder if you could
15 provide a little more depth there. Because I see that
16 as a potential failure point with any delivery system
17 model.

18 MS. BARRY: Thanks for the opportunity to
19 talk about that a little bit more. I think that we've
20 learned that, you know, the data, unless structured
21 appropriately and in bite-sized pieces appropriate for
22 the audience, really can be meaningful, meaningless.
23 So, as we've learned and every year kind of iteratively
24 tried some new things out, received some feedback,
25 we've focused on a couple of areas.

1 First, I would say is data transparency within our
2 network, and that started at a policy level and now has
3 really gotten to more of an implementation perspective,
4 so getting people used to, not only having their data
5 shared within the network, but sharing it with others
6 and benchmarking against one another, not only just
7 kind of opaque national benchmarks, but then also
8 really trying to align kind of our focus areas with
9 actionable information at once.

10 So diabetes and hypertension are a great example.
11 Those are clinically based measures where we need to
12 understand, not only what we can get out of our health
13 information exchange for our individual EHR, but we
14 actually are investing next year in some staff time to
15 do ongoing manual data extraction, which is a process
16 that normally we only do annually, in order to make
17 sure that, at least quarterly, all of our primary care
18 providers have that kind of real-time or as close to
19 real-time data to actually make adjustments in the way
20 that they're providing care and the way that they're
21 learning from that system and those processes. So I
22 see that as a big advancement.

23 At the same time, kind of the next level up of the
24 system thinking across the health service area, we've
25 been very focused on providing monthly reports by payer

1 across each health service area and showing some
2 benchmarking data of other HSAs as well as OneCare at a
3 whole. I think that continues to be really important,
4 but the way I'm thinking about it is that we need to
5 kind of surveil across quite a number of measures but,
6 at the same time, hone in and have really specific
7 focus on where there's opportunity to improve.

8 So, for example, we talk a lot in our clinical
9 committees about avoidable use of the emergency
10 department and how nuanced that is. I mean, it seems
11 just like kind of an obvious thing to change, but from
12 one community to the next, the drivers underneath that
13 vary quite a bit and have to do with access to services
14 and consumer preference and hours of operation and all
15 sorts of other things.

16 But I would say it's that tension for me between
17 we can't take our eyes off the ball and stop paying
18 attention, but, at the same time, we need to help
19 people see more narrowly where to focus. And I'm
20 excited, as Vicki spoke of earlier, that we have these
21 new mechanisms through some consultative reports where
22 we're really bringing together the population health
23 analytics and the financial analytics to say, Here's
24 where the spotlight needs to be focused.

25 That's still a new enough process for us in this

1 model that it's a little too soon to be able to tell
2 you about the outcomes that are resulting, but I can
3 tell you that, coming up in our next board meeting, we
4 will have one of our health service areas in the public
5 session kind of spotlighting what they're doing in
6 response to the data that they're receiving.

7 MS. LUNGE: And that brings me -- I'm going
8 to kind of jump between the two quadrants of usable and
9 data and actual care redesign. So, when you provide
10 that -- I know that you were talking about the
11 quarterly data on diabetes and hypertension that you
12 would provide to the primary care level and then the
13 HSA sort of spotlight data, I'll call it. Who does
14 that HSA-level data go to in the HSA?

15 MS. BARRY: Yeah. So, because this is all,
16 you know, confidential information, much of it, you
17 know, we have to be quite careful of and sensitive
18 about, it's posted every month on OneCare's secure
19 portal, which is accessible to anyone in our provider
20 network. We send out kind of reminders around that,
21 and we include key performance reports at the ACO level
22 in our board packets that go out every month.

23 In addition, about a year ago, we evolved one of
24 our staffing supports in our analytics team to be a
25 population health analyst, and she goes out and

1 actually uses those reports and engages in the
2 community-level meetings that are happening for those
3 participating in the ACO.

4 So whether they're called accountable communities
5 for health or regional clinical performance committees,
6 everybody's got their own kind of label, but that's a
7 place to really talk at the local population level
8 about what's going on and look at some comparative
9 data.

10 MS. LUNGE: Okay. That's helpful. Do you
11 think that we have, we collectively, not just the ACO,
12 do you think we, as a state, have collectively invested
13 sufficient resources in the care delivery redesign
14 component of change? And the reason I ask that is
15 because, going back to lessons from the Blueprint, the
16 Blueprint's payment component was small and always
17 recognized as small and not necessarily the driver of
18 the delivery change, because it was so small.

19 However, the Blueprint provides practice
20 facilitators to primary care so that there's a person
21 who goes to the practice, sits down with them, and
22 helps them redesign their care, and that's still
23 available at the primary care level, but I think the
24 kind of care redesign we need moving forward is bigger
25 than just primary care, obviously.

1 And so that same kind of resource is not available
2 to hospitals. It's not available, although they may
3 have internal resources to do that. I don't know. And
4 that probably varies depending on the hospital. And
5 we, and that kind of resources is not something that I
6 know about in the broader community provider level, the
7 home health or DAs.

8 So one of my areas of concern has always been
9 getting from the top drivers down to the actual care
10 redesign, and I'm a little concerned that we have not,
11 as a state, focused enough on what providers need to
12 facilitate that care redesign. So I welcome your
13 thoughts on that, and then connected to that is, Whose
14 role is it to fund and/or provide those supports?
15 Because you have the Blueprint model where it's
16 actually the State that does that. I think in other
17 states it's the ACO that is doing that. You could also
18 argue for a model that the community providers
19 themselves should be, you know, in charge of their own
20 care redesign. So I'll stop talking and let you
21 respond.

22 MS. BARRY: Great. So I think you
23 identified, Robin, a key factor that is integral to
24 thinking about the kind of systems change within
25 Vermont, and that is that there's a longstanding

1 history of the Blueprint for Health and its work,
2 certainly, in patients that are medical homes, but also
3 more broadly in the community, and so OneCare's goal
4 has always been to find ways to partner with that and
5 to build on and amplify, not to duplicate, and that's
6 incredibly important to our provider network as well.
7 I think where we're headed with the self-management
8 program is a great example of kind of one way in which
9 that collaboration can evolve, and we continue
10 conversations between OneCare and the Blueprint about
11 other avenues to explore.

12 In terms of the kind of that dichotomy between
13 practice-level support and community support, I do
14 think there are some components that exist in that
15 space but probably aren't fully realized, in part
16 because of lack of funding and lack of ability to
17 invest, and I think that the challenge from our
18 providers' perspective has been the lack of delivery
19 system reform dollars that have been realized in
20 Vermont over the first four years of this model in
21 terms of potential opportunity to have a faster or more
22 accelerated impact in those care delivery
23 transformation models.

24 I think, to the extent that some of that does
25 exist, we've identified that every community looks

1 different for some good reasons and maybe for some
2 reasons that we should challenge. That, oftentimes,
3 that view is being held by a Blueprint project manager
4 who brings together folks from OneCare, from the QI
5 facilitators, from other really important community
6 partners that are also volunteering their time to do
7 that work.

8 We've been really focused on how to encourage the
9 all-payer model population health goals as the frame
10 around which people decide to focus their energies,
11 find opportunity, and I think that, as OneCare has
12 increased the number of lives in the model, our ability
13 to support the data that needs to drive that decision
14 making has really become much more important and much
15 more integral to that process, but I would say in the
16 end it's much slower than I would like to see, and it
17 needs more investment in order to realize its full
18 potential.

19 MS. LONER: Robin, I was going to agree with
20 Sara to say I think there needs to be much more
21 investment made in this area. We've tried to hit a
22 balance through the ACO, because the providers
23 themselves are using the ACO infrastructure to be able
24 to support some of those things that you just talked
25 about, but there is not -- most of that money is coming

1 from the providers themselves, right, to be able to
2 share resources and bring that together.

3 There is a need, though, to make more of those
4 investments, and whether they be within the ACO,
5 because maybe it makes more sense to have a shared
6 resource than each and every community having their own
7 QI facilitator in it, or whether it be directly to the
8 provider source, I think, is something that, if there
9 were funding opportunity, that we would really want to
10 look at, because I do believe that is an area of risk,
11 and we're doing our best to align the resources that
12 already exist, but I just don't think enough resources
13 exist.

14 MS. LUNGE: Thank you. Going back to data
15 and HIT for a moment, in terms of Care Navigator, my
16 recollection from last year was that you were exploring
17 ways to potentially feed the information directly into
18 EHRs, because one of the provider complaints from those
19 providers with robust EHRs is having to go to another
20 spot.

21 So I'm wondering if you could talk about that and
22 any other sort of initiatives that you have that reduce
23 the provider burden of using Care Navigator, because,
24 to be frank, we hear some people who very much complain
25 about it, and then we hear, for example, in Rural

1 Health Services Task Force, we had a subcommittee on
2 care management and are there policy steps that should
3 be next, and we had other communities who loved it and
4 wanted to give it to everybody in their community.

5 So I feel like it's a tale of two Care Navigators,
6 and my guess is that some of that discrepancy has to do
7 with the community and how they've implemented it
8 themselves and the provider type and what other sort
9 of, you know, electronic health records they may have
10 to monitor as well, but I'd love your thoughts on that
11 and also an update on how you've been working on that.

12 MS. BARRY: Sure. You're absolutely right.
13 I'm hearing an echo. You're absolutely right that you
14 talk to one community compared to another and you get
15 different perspectives. I would say what I have been
16 hearing in the last 9 to 12 months tips more towards
17 the favorable side of, Care Navigator has made a
18 difference now that we really understand how to use it
19 and our community has come together around it, and in
20 other communities that are struggling with that
21 implementation a little bit more, it's because there's
22 a chicken-and-egg conversation happening, I don't want
23 to use it until my neighbor uses it, and my neighbor
24 doesn't want to use it until I use it.

25 And so trying to break that down and really say,

1 Let's understand what this is meant to do and how this
2 can help facilitate better care delivery, has really
3 been critical to that, and that, that's often a small
4 group conversation that really needs to center around
5 individuals where gaps maybe have occurred, and when
6 that conversation can happen, I've seen a real shift.

7 In terms of the integration with EHRs, that is a
8 huge challenge. I would not say that we've made
9 significant progress in that area, nor has it been as
10 much of a focus for us in this year. We've been more
11 paying attention to how to operationalize a significant
12 change in our payment model that really is meant to
13 align with our value-based care strategies, and,
14 overall, I think that's going very well. It's also
15 providing some really interesting insight on who is
16 active on the care team, what types of organizations do
17 they come from, again, how does that vary a little bit
18 from one community to the next, and where are there
19 opportunities for us centrally at OneCare to help
20 facilitate some of those linkages.

21 In addition, we've really expanded some of our use
22 and integration between PatientPing and Care Navigator
23 to get real-time event notification information as well
24 as some reporting to sit on top of Care Navigator that
25 helps us shine that spotlight, as we were saying

1 earlier, on individual patients so that we know earlier
2 that, just because a report that's run in a local EHR
3 doesn't necessarily identify that somebody went, you
4 know, to their local emergency room twice but went down
5 the road to another ER seven times in the last sixty
6 days. All of a sudden, they can see that, and they can
7 develop a plan for outreach and engagement, and I think
8 those are some of the critical factors, along with some
9 of the training and education that we've done, that
10 have led to such a huge uptick in our care managed
11 rate.

12 Having said that, with any technology there's
13 always opportunities to continue to improve it and
14 refine it and look for, you know, even questions of,
15 Does it become redundant at some point in the future?
16 And I think we ask that question a lot, and the answer
17 we keep coming to through our provider conversations
18 is, until we can really robustly demonstrate the
19 outcomes that we're trying to achieve in this community
20 team-based model, we won't know to what degree is it
21 really that facilitated communication through
22 technology that is leading to that versus the actual,
23 say, one-to-one, individual-to-care-team-member
24 engagement. So I think, in that sense, it's exciting,
25 but there's a lot more to learn.

1 MS. LUNGE: Thank you. Sorry. I muted in
2 case I was causing the echo. In terms of the new
3 payment model in the complex care coordination program,
4 how, I wanted to get an update on how that
5 implementation was going. Because I know you pushed it
6 back a little bit due to Covid. So that still seems
7 like it would be in the early stages.

8 MS. BARRY: Yes, we implemented the new
9 payment model in July, and, you know, it was a huge
10 lift. It was a huge change and frankly relied on a lot
11 of data and payment systems internally to OneCare being
12 up and flowing well. So that took tremendous
13 resources. I think it's going very well from that
14 standpoint. I think a couple of decisions that our
15 board made during the early days of the public health
16 emergency made a big difference, so things like making
17 sure that the organizations that had already kind of
18 exceeded what their capacity target was and would be
19 doing better financially in the new model were
20 compensated for that, not kind of harmed through that
21 process. So that was very appreciated by the number
22 that were there.

23 You know, I think there's still lots to continue
24 to learn about the levels of payments that are set, the
25 nuances about, How do we understand ideal state of the

1 size of a care team? Because of the COVID-19 pandemic,
2 I think there is still a lot we need to think about
3 with care teams as one of the incentive payments when
4 there is an annual care conference that happens, and
5 we've modified some of our rules around that in light
6 of the pandemic to say that it can, for example, happen
7 virtually, even though, in a best practice scenario,
8 that would be a live, you know, in-person event.

9 So I think, you know, we're on a good path. We
10 asked some questions about whether there were immediate
11 kind of tweaks or refinements we needed to make going
12 into 2021, and the answer was, It's still early. Let
13 us get used to this. We think it makes sense, and we
14 think it's going to work, but let's watch as we move
15 forward.

16 MS. LUNGE: Thanks. In terms of the
17 Blueprint self-management programs, I have not been
18 following their current usage as part of the Blueprint,
19 and I'm curious if you know how many people are
20 currently participating in that. Do you have kind of a
21 goal or target for once that implementation shifts to
22 you, and do you have plans to change the actual
23 programs?

24 MS. BARRY: I'd be happy to follow up on some
25 more specific in numbers and detail that I don't have

1 in my head, but I would say, globally, I'm really
2 excited, because the overall strategy is to move from
3 kind of one model that has been operational, which is a
4 pretty intensive model which often has a lot of people
5 falling out of it, because they can't necessarily make
6 every meeting, or, you know, long, dark nights prohibit
7 somebody from leaving their home, to one that provides
8 options that can be well-coordinated through those
9 decision-making conversations, say, with their primary
10 care provider.

11 So for one individual it might mean one-on-one
12 health coaching. For another it might mean group
13 visits, as we've had in the past as the primary model.
14 For yet another it might be trying out technology and
15 really looking at how we might be able to do health
16 coaching in a virtual environment, either synchronously
17 or asynchronously.

18 And one of the key partners I just want to make
19 sure to call out is that the health department has been
20 really critical in this conversation and done some
21 tremendous work. We're aligning through their 1815
22 grants, and they're actually providing some funding to
23 OneCare as part of this overarching strategy next year
24 to test some of those new electronic technologies and
25 models and see if they prove really valuable, and then

1 it becomes kind of another conversation to say, How do
2 we scale this up?

3 MS. LUNGE: Thanks.

4 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Hey, Robin, before you ask
5 another question, how many more do you have?

6 MS. LUNGE: A few.

7 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay. I think that then
8 this is a logical time to take a break so that we're
9 not killing people who may be diabetic or what have
10 you.

11 MS. LUNGE: Definitely.

12 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: So, at this time, we'll go
13 into recess until 1:00 o'clock and resume then.

14 (A recess was taken from 12:33 p.m. to 1:00 p.m.)

15 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay. Welcome back,
16 everyone. So we left off with questions from Member
17 Lunge, Robin, if you could proceed.

18 MS. LUNGE: Absolutely. Thank you. So my
19 next question is around some information that you
20 provided in the binder, which is in Section 3 of the,
21 Section 3, which is ACO care programs, Page 17,
22 relating to the Medicaid expansion population, and
23 there was something that I thought was interesting in
24 looking at this information that I wanted to ask you
25 about, which is, so the Medicaid expanded population

1 are the groups of people in Medicaid who aren't
2 attributable through a normal mechanism, meaning their
3 primary care visits, and so the purpose of this
4 program, as I understand it, was to engage those folks
5 with primary care.

6 And what I was curious about in the data you
7 provided is that 71 percent of them were considered
8 high- or very high-risk, and so could you talk a little
9 bit about that? Because I found it interesting that,
10 if they're high- or very high-risk, you would hope that
11 they had at least some connection with the health care
12 system. Was it that they were seeking care but it just
13 wasn't primary care, or do you have any sense of what
14 was going on with that population?

15 MS. BARRY: Yeah. So this expanded cohort
16 represents a whole host of individuals, from those who
17 have received no care or services but live in a region
18 all the way up through those who might be frequent
19 users of the emergency department. They could have had
20 an inpatient stay, they could be using mental health
21 services, but don't have a primary care relationship.

22 And so I think one of the things we've learned in
23 the first year of expanding this program is that there
24 was a little bit of messiness in the data that we
25 needed to work on between us and DVHA around this. And

1 so some of them might have had that relationship, it
2 might have been a little bit older, and we needed to
3 understand that better, but then in other places
4 there's huge opportunity to facilitate and build those
5 relationships.

6 MS. LUNGE: Great, thank you. I wanted to
7 next turn to your proposal around the Blueprint and
8 SASH level funding for the Medicare levels, and this is
9 not really a question. I just want you to be aware of
10 my position on this as one of the people who negotiated
11 this model, but it's my -- in the negotiation we were
12 able to receive additional funding through, in that
13 first year, which we were then allowed to trend forward
14 as part of the benchmark, and so I, I don't personally
15 believe that you should be getting a trend on those
16 dollars if those dollars aren't going to Blueprint and
17 SASH.

18 So, to me, level funding means leaving those
19 Medicare dollars on the table. You're welcome to react
20 to that if you'd like, but I'll just be very clear that
21 I'm not supportive of this particular proposal in your
22 budget.

23 MS. LONER: Robin, if I could just say
24 something, I think, to give some context to this. You
25 know, we were supposed to get that trend in 2020, and

1 now we're looking at that trending clawed back in 2021.
2 I understand that the Green Mountain Care Board is
3 looking to try to restore that, but that has not been
4 decided yet, and we won't know that until April of next
5 year, and those dollars have already gone out the door
6 to support that trend increase.

7 I'd also like say that for 2021 it's very unclear
8 whether or not the, you know, Covid and the exogenous
9 factors and any kind of trend adjustment will be
10 applied in 2021. So to prematurely give raises while
11 we don't know what will happen in 2020, nor do we know
12 what will happen in 2021, doesn't seem fiscally
13 responsible.

14 MS. LUNGE: Well, I appreciate your
15 perspective, and I totally agree, Covid has really
16 created quite a challenge in the benchmark, but I do
17 think we have to disentangle that, because, if we're
18 not investing the money, we're not getting the money
19 from Medicare either so --

20 But, moving on, I was heartened to hear about the
21 longitudinal care program, which the, the original test
22 site in Burlington resulted in a savings of 1,150 PMPM,
23 and to, to see in your binder that you're extending
24 that to 6 additional health service areas. Can you
25 tell us which health service areas will be included

1 next year?

2 MS. BARRY: You're going to test my memory,
3 so it might be best if I follow up in writing.

4 MS. LUNGE: That's absolutely fine. Yeah.
5 I'm just interested to understand better how the
6 program will be expanding beyond the initial pilot
7 site, as well as if you have any changes to it, but,
8 certainly, you can follow up with that.

9 MS. BARRY: Great.

10 MS. LUNGE: I was also interested in, in the
11 binder you talked about the levels of care coordinator
12 turnover throughout the network and highlighting the
13 importance of care coordination skill training over
14 time to ensure that skill set is available in the HSAs.
15 Could you give us a little more information about the
16 turnover rate? And, again, happy to have you follow up
17 with anything that you don't have off the top of your
18 head.

19 MS. BARRY: Yeah. So, generally speaking,
20 we've seen somewhere in the neighborhood of 120 to 150
21 positions turn over out of about 800 a year, which has
22 been pretty shocking to us, but I think a lot of it is
23 a competitive workforce. I think, you know,
24 differences in reimbursement rates occur, changes just
25 in preferences and so forth. And so our intention is

1 to try to really build some professional understanding
2 and some true, like, enjoyment of this complex work at
3 the local level, and one of the ways to do that is for
4 OneCare to facilitate, not only the entrance level, you
5 know, kind of skills and knowledge building, but really
6 to create professional development opportunities.

7 And so one of the things that you might recall we
8 wrote about in the binder is around providing an
9 opportunity to bring in some national experts in case
10 management and provide certification opportunities, and
11 that's really being done in a train-the-trainer model.

12 MS. LUNGE: Great. In terms of care
13 variation analysis, also in the binder you talked about
14 how HSAs that exhibited a higher than average
15 fee-for-service equivalent spend also had a higher than
16 average inpatient spend driven by higher utilization of
17 inpatient and higher specialty visit PMPMs. I'm, I
18 found that interesting, and I'm, I just wanted to get a
19 little bit more information about that. Did you also,
20 did you look at sort of price variation and hold that
21 constant in some way in looking at those variations to
22 really drill down that it was the utilization of
23 inpatient and, and not the, for example, the cost or
24 the variations in the cost, hospital cost?

25 MS. BARRY: Tom, I don't know if you have any

1 other insights. Otherwise, I would just want to go
2 back to our analytics team to answer that question.

3 MR. BORYS: Yeah, I think that's right, for
4 more detail. We do tend to look at variation on both a
5 PMPM and a PKPY, per thousand per year, basis, and the
6 reason for doing that is sometimes you'll see a
7 divergence where utilization is low but spend is
8 higher, and that gives us the opportunity to look in a
9 little bit more depth to see if there's something about
10 reimbursement, and particularly with Medicare with so
11 many critical access hospitals that are paid at a
12 cost-based reimbursement, there's a lot of variation
13 there that does need to be accounted for.

14 MS. LUNGE: Great. So any follow-up you have
15 on that would be interesting to learn about.
16 Similarly, in Tab 14 you've provided us with exhibits
17 related to most prevalent conditions and then most
18 prevalent conditions in high-cost patients, and I was
19 struck by the fact that there was a lot of similarity
20 between those two tables. So what can you tell us
21 about what's driving then the cost of those high-cost
22 patients? If it's not the, like, a particular
23 condition, then is it the severity of the condition?
24 Like, can you help me unpack sort of more meaning into
25 those two charts?

1 MS. BARRY: So I think, briefly, this is a
2 dissertation in and of itself.

3 MS. LUNGE: Yes.

4 MS. BARRY: So I think the one thing that you
5 can't kind of let go of or lose sight of in any of
6 these analyses is that many high-cost or high-risk
7 individuals have multiple conditions, and so you really
8 have to develop some pretty sophisticated models to try
9 to break that down, but it's often the intersection of
10 those conditions along with their social determinants
11 and those social factors.

12 MS. LUNGE: Thank you. Well, perhaps we can
13 have a follow-up conversation in lieu of a dissertation
14 sometime, because I'd be interested in unpacking that a
15 little more.

16 MS. BARRY: Happy to do it.

17 MS. LUNGE: Great. One other HIT question.
18 Tom, you, in answer to, I think, one of Maureen's
19 questions or maybe in your presentation, you had
20 indicated that the, obviously, you get data sets from
21 the payers and VITL and that the data there is only as
22 good as you get. Does that -- should I take away from
23 that that there are some issues with the data that you
24 get, and, if so, could you speak to that?

25 MR. BORYS: Yeah. I think it's an ongoing

1 journey with the payers to make sure that the data that
2 we're receiving is timely and accurate. That's just
3 kind of regular business, and we want to make sure we
4 get our data sets as early in the year as possible and
5 we consistently get them so that we can do consistent
6 reporting to our network.

7 In a little bit more of the finance space, it's
8 just appropriate to recognize that our data is in some
9 ways limited by confidential claims and other nuanced
10 factors that sometimes make it hard to have the total
11 picture. We have a pretty good chunk of it, but there
12 are missing pieces due to 42 CFR Part 2, for example.
13 So we're always working with the payers to improve the
14 data reporting to make sure we have what we need, but
15 that other piece is very relevant in the finance space.

16 MS. LUNGE: Okay, great.

17 MS. BARRY: I'd just add to that that a
18 number of payers have made changes in data vendors and
19 data platforms this year or last year, and so there
20 have been some fairly significant, not only delays, but
21 also new processes and systems to work through. So I
22 think there's opportunity, as we turn to '21, to keep
23 optimizing those processes.

24 MS. LUNGE: Great, excellent. Maureen had
25 asked for your, your thoughts around the future of the

1 risk corridors, and I didn't think I heard an answer.
2 So maybe I missed it, but I thought I would reask the
3 question.

4 MR. BORYS: Oh, yeah, sure. Thanks for
5 bringing that back up. It's hard to know what the
6 future holds. It is clear to me that we are reducing
7 risk corridors very much in response to COVID-19 and
8 what it's done. I can say that we continue to believe
9 that two-sided risk is effective. I think it garners
10 much more attention from the population, from the
11 provider participants.

12 But I do think it's also appropriate to consider
13 the overall magnitude of risk that the all-payer model
14 calls for, and these numbers will be general, but I've
15 done some math in the past where, if we actually hit
16 the scale targets as a state, regardless of whether
17 it's all under OneCare or other ACOs, the magnitude of
18 downside risk at the levels we previously had would be
19 huge. We're talking over \$150 million, and that's a
20 conservative estimate.

21 So I, I think we need to factor that in as well,
22 what's the appropriate level to balance reasonable
23 accountability with the fact that we're a small state
24 with a lot of rural health care that just doesn't have
25 the ability to absorb a huge downside loss year. So I

1 think that's a space for, for us as a state to keep
2 working together to figure out, like, how do we work
3 with the payers and make sure that this is right-sized
4 and appropriate, and I do think, if we stayed with the
5 old risk corridors fully maxed out, we would be very
6 heavily laden with downside risk, and I believe that
7 would be a risk to participation.

8 MS. LUNGE: Thank you.

9 MS. LONER: I think, Robin, the short kind of
10 answer is for the next couple of years, for 2021 and
11 2022, due to the uncertainty caused by the pandemic, I
12 think you're going to see us shifting more towards less
13 risk, but with less risk means less reward as well,
14 and, if we're looking to grow, you need that reward
15 opportunity, especially if you want to continue to
16 invest in programs like we're, like we're investing in
17 them right now. It's just, it doesn't balance out.

18 So after that I would say that we're going to be
19 moving more towards higher risk and reward, but you
20 have to make sure that you go into that with a network
21 that's ready to take on higher risk and reward. So you
22 have to be certain that they've made the necessary
23 changes and investments themselves to be able to move
24 to that next level.

25 MS. LUNGE: Thanks. That lends itself nicely

1 to my next question, which is the expansion of fixed
2 prospective payments. I, when you were last here, I
3 asked you how the pilots in the Blue Cross fixed
4 prospective payment pilot was going. It sounded like
5 it was going well. What, what is the future there?
6 Are we expecting to see that go beyond the initial
7 pilot site? When would that happen? What are we
8 thinking about that?

9 MR. BORYS: Yeah. The report as of today is
10 that the pilot has gone quite well, so pleased with
11 that. Really, the, the couple things that we're
12 working on is what's the design of the fixed payment,
13 and there's different versions. There's reconciled
14 fixed payments, unreconciled fixed payments. They,
15 honestly, each of them have their own pros and cons. I
16 think the reconciled version does have some benefits
17 too. We are working on exploring expansion of this.
18 It's in discussion with payer partners.

19 I will say one of my priority areas is to get the
20 CPR, comprehensive payment reform, practices for
21 commercial into this fixed payment model. We kind of
22 run a hybrid where the public payers were capitated,
23 private were in the model, but we've relied on the
24 fee-for-service payments to round it out. That, to me,
25 is a really important priority.

1 But we have evidence to believe and that suggests
2 payment reform's been effective. The hospitals that
3 have been under the true capitation have really showed
4 positive performance there, and I think we need to keep
5 it going. The more that we go back to some sort of a
6 fee-for-service basis, whether it's for evaluation of
7 performance or setting the targets, the more we go back
8 there, the more linked we are to some of the flaws in a
9 volume-based paradigm.

10 So more to come in that space as we discuss with
11 the payers, but it's certainly a priority area for us
12 to continue expanding the payment reform initiatives
13 across the network.

14 MS. LUNGE: Well, I look forward to more
15 information when your payer contracts are closer to
16 final, but I hope to see some expansion in that space.

17 MS. LONER: I would just add, Robin, a little
18 bit to that in terms of the fixed payment. I think
19 that it's been operationally challenging to have fixed
20 payments that are reconciled, and so, in terms of where
21 we'd like to see a push, it's not so much an expanding
22 reconciled fixed payments through commercial payers.
23 We need to get Medicare, which is the largest chunk of
24 dollars, in a truly fixed payment mechanism, because it
25 doesn't incent providers to do really well and then

1 have it clawed back at the end.

2 MS. LUNGE: Yeah, I hear you, but Medicare
3 needs 18 months to do any sort of operational change,
4 so that sort of change is not going to happen quickly,
5 even if they were willing to do that, quite, agree to
6 that tomorrow. So I think, in the meantime, there may
7 be more opportunity to actually expand in the
8 commercial sector. So that's just my two cents on
9 that, but I don't disagree about Medicare. It's just
10 Medicare's slow with, in terms of operationalizing.

11 MS. LONER: Yeah, I know, and I would just
12 say, from the providers' perspective, they need to get
13 some signals that they're actually going to do that and
14 that 18-month clock is going to start ticking.

15 MS. LUNGE: All right, okay. That's
16 interesting. Thank you. In terms of the self, the
17 Blue Cross Blue Shield Primary, I know that
18 self-insured employers have the opportunity to decline
19 participation, because they are self-insured employers
20 after all, but I was curious how that impacts the
21 attribution and the model, because that was not
22 particularly clear to me from the provider agreement or
23 the payer contract, which I just barely got last night,
24 so I haven't thoroughly digested it. Can you explain
25 that?

1 MR. BORYS: Sure, I'll give it my best but
2 look to Sara and Vicki also on this one. It's really
3 one program, overarching program, and then the lives
4 are then divided into the two groups. So my
5 understanding of the way that Blue Cross manages on
6 their end is, once they've received word from their
7 employer health plans who is participating in the
8 value-based model Blue Cross is offering to them, when
9 they run the attribution, they'll say, Okay, this
10 employer group decided not to be in a value-based care
11 model. Put the lives here. This employer group did
12 decide to be in the value-based care model. Put the
13 lives here. For the lives that are in the
14 non-value-based care model, we don't --

15 MS. LUNGE: You mean the non-risk model,
16 right?

17 MR. BORYS: Non-risk model, yeah.

18 MS. LUNGE: I just want to make sure, because
19 that's the terminology that was used in the binder, so
20 --

21 MR. BORYS: We do not receive data for those,
22 so they're completely anonymous. There is a PMPM that
23 comes to OneCare for those lives still based on the way
24 that Blue Cross designed their programs so that the
25 same \$3.25 PMPM comes through to OneCare for those

1 lives, but we have no financial accountability for
2 their care and no access to data.

3 For the lives that are in the risk model, it looks
4 much more like the other programs. We get access to
5 the data, and we have financial accountability for cost
6 and quality.

7 MS. LUNGE: All right. I am almost done,
8 believe it or not. My last question was related to one
9 of the materials we had asked you to submit from the
10 last budget, which is the patient reengagement quality
11 improvement tool kit that you and Blueprint and Blue
12 Cross Blue Shield developed for the Blue Cross Blue
13 Shield Primary Program. I was curious if you or Blue
14 Cross have any way of tracking whether or not providers
15 are using it. I took a quick look at it, and it seems
16 like it's both short but also pretty good in terms of
17 getting people thinking about the care redesign in a
18 short-and-sweet document, but do we know if people are
19 using it?

20 MS. BARRY: We do know that there were eight
21 or nine practices early on that engaged around that
22 process. Frankly, I think with Covid a lot of things
23 got put to the side.

24 MS. LUNGE: Sure.

25 MS. BARRY: Plenty of opportunity for us to

1 look at reengaging folks around that.

2 MS. LUNGE: Okay, great. All right. Yeah,
3 that sounds good, because it looked like a good tool.
4 I just wasn't sure if people were taking it up. And
5 that is my last question.

6 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Thank you, Robin. Member
7 Holmes, Jessica.

8 MS. HOLMES: Great, thank you, and thank you,
9 OneCare team, for the presentation. I have no doubt
10 how much work you all put into putting together that
11 binder, and, rest assured, we've been combing through
12 it and will continue to do so. So it wasn't a waste of
13 your energy and efforts to do so. I also just want to,
14 you know, thank my colleagues for asking a lot of the
15 questions that I would have asked, and so it's kind of
16 nice to go last or almost second-to-last.

17 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Next-to-last.

18 MS. HOLMES: Yeah, second-to-last. But I
19 will echo some of their concerns without reiterating
20 them around the new risk model. It's not clear to me
21 that it's aligning risk optimally or that it's going to
22 incent the type of behavior that we all hope to see,
23 but I'm just going to say that for the record there.

24 Also, echoing Tom's comments about needing to see
25 more ROI metrics, I think it's really important to

1 understand the value of the ACO and actually to
2 quantify the value of the ACO. So the more we can see
3 of that, I think it's better.

4 And so, I guess, my first set of questions is
5 building on what Robin just asked but in a bigger way,
6 and, again, it's about assessment. So OneCare is
7 spending the majority of its operating budget on data
8 analytics, care coordination tools, clinical
9 consultations, you know, dissemination of best
10 practices, these kinds of tools and reports and data
11 analytics going out to the provider network.

12 So my question to you is, Can you talk about if
13 and how you're doing a comprehensive and systemwide
14 assessment of the value of these tools? You know, does
15 the value of these tools vary by provider type? Are
16 they using them in significant ways? How do you know
17 how often they're using them, the value of them? What
18 have you learned?

19 I'm trying to get a sense of -- we have been
20 hearing mixed reviews on some of these tools, whether
21 the data is coming too late or the data is not sharing
22 information that providers really need. They already
23 know who their high-risk patients are. There's a whole
24 bunch of things we anecdotally hear, and some
25 communities, as we've heard, love the care coordination

1 model, Care Navigator.

2 So we're hearing lots of different stories about
3 the types of tools that the ACO is providing. So I'm
4 wondering what kind of comprehensive and systemwide
5 assessment you're doing and what you've learned about
6 these tools. It would be helpful to hear and see the
7 results of.

8 MS. BARRY: This is Sara. I can start by
9 saying, you know, there are a lot of metrics that we
10 are tracking across, not only the, you know, the way
11 care is delivered, but thinking about the way that we
12 are supporting those programs, and some of it is still
13 very early and way too difficult to draw any
14 conclusions yet.

15 So, of course, we're looking at things, as we've
16 reported to you, like care team composition and how
17 frequently, say, care team members or lead care
18 coordinators are coming from primary care versus a home
19 health agency, and there's some new learnings in that
20 that are starting to emerge. We do look at utilization
21 of different tools, and I think we've gotten much
22 closer to a feedback loop with our providers around how
23 to enhance those.

24 Having said that, OneCare does not have -- I'll
25 speak transparently. OneCare doesn't have the

1 resources to do an in-depth systematic evaluation, and
2 we had actually hoped in our pre-Covid budget to hire
3 an evaluation expert, somebody with some more of that
4 experience, and that had to be put on the shelf in
5 light of some of the transitions that had happened
6 because of the pandemic.

7 I think it's a huge opportunity, and one of the
8 things we hope to see emerge from that is, through the
9 federal evaluation of the overall model and approach,
10 that we can start to learn some of those key areas as
11 well. Having said that, there's always more that could
12 be done. It's a matter of balancing resources.

13 MS. HOLMES: Yeah. I mean, just a quick
14 question, then, on follow-up with that. I mean, there
15 are low-cost ways to, you know, using simple tools like
16 Survey Monkey or things like that, that just get out
17 and get a little, you know, sense and assessment of how
18 providers are feeling about the tools. Has that,
19 anything like that been done across the different, even
20 a random sampling of different provider types to do
21 that kind of assessment?

22 MS. BARRY: Yeah, so there's a couple things
23 we focused on this year. We actually are just
24 compiling the results of a Survey Monkey tool of all of
25 the local care coordination staff where we asked them a

1 whole series of questions kind of about what's working,
2 where could we improve things. And so the team will
3 really be focused on analyzing those results. They
4 were just downloading them last week. And we're
5 committed to making actionable change and being very
6 transparent about what we're doing in response to that
7 feedback.

8 Another area that's just emerging through our
9 primary care work group is to work to better assess
10 current feelings, beliefs, and perceptions around the
11 patient-centered medical home NCQA framework, because
12 we continued to hear everything from, The new system
13 works beautifully, to, It's the worst thing in my life,
14 and, you know, causes all sorts of administrative
15 burden. And so we want a more systematic way to figure
16 out what the current state is and, therefore,
17 understand what role, if any, should OneCare play in
18 that dialogue moving forward.

19 MS. HOLMES: Okay.

20 MS. LONER: Sara, I would just add to what
21 you said. I think it goes back to the theme earlier is
22 that we are a provider-led organization, and so that
23 means we're listening to the voices of our providers
24 each and every day, and we have very structured
25 governance committees to be able to elicit that

1 feedback and to help them help us design what they need
2 in order to be successful, and so that's an ongoing,
3 it's not a formal assessment, but it's an ongoing
4 assessment and evaluation, and it's, nobody is ever
5 going to be happy with everything that you do in
6 thousands of providers.

7 We have thousands of providers in our network, and
8 part of it sometimes has to, comes down to is, you
9 know, we have responsibilities as an ACO to provide
10 data to you, to provide data to our payers, to provide
11 evaluation, and, if we don't have a tool to be able to
12 measure that, then we can't give it to the people that
13 are asking for it.

14 So I think that's part of a thing that has to be
15 looked at is, Are the expectations that are put on us
16 as the ACO realistic? Because they do get passed down
17 to the providers of OneCare to be able to report on
18 that information, and so I just think that needs to be
19 part of the larger discussion of, How do some of these
20 oversights, whether or not they be OneCare oversight,
21 payer oversight, regulatory oversight, what is the
22 cascading effect of that on the OneCare network?

23 MS. HOLMES: Fair enough. Quick follow-up
24 question. You talked about the governance and the
25 committees and how that's a mechanism by which you can

1 gather insights from your users, and I'm just
2 wondering. Do you feel as though the, the, the
3 committees that you're gathering those insights from
4 around the value of these tools is representative of
5 your provider network so you're hearing truly the
6 voices are really being heard and represented on those
7 committees?

8 MS. BARRY: I would speak to that a bit and
9 just say we very deliberately structure them. So,
10 while we have committees that report directly in and
11 make recommendations to our board, we then have
12 subcommittees under those like primary care, clinical
13 and quality, a lab committee, and so I think we've
14 built a nice structure, and at kind of the bottom of
15 that pyramid it's very inclusive. Anyone can come, and
16 so it creates plenty of opportunity for that.

17 I also think, as we have gotten more experienced,
18 for example, the chair of our population health
19 strategy committee has been very intentional about
20 creating some open space to make sure we are not just
21 kind of working our way through an agenda but also
22 hearing about, what is top of mind, what are the
23 concerns, how might we, as an ACO working together as a
24 system of providers, be able to address those issues.

25 MS. HOLMES: Okay. My second question is a

1 little bit of a follow-up, again, on assessment. But
2 thinking about the CPR program, to some degree, I think
3 about this program as a microcosm of what we might hope
4 we might be able to see at the statewide level, right,
5 more capitated payments, more predictable and fixed
6 payments to providers. So I feel as though there's a
7 lot of lessons to be learned there.

8 So what can you tell us, any recent updates on
9 how, for providers that have been in the CPR program
10 for multiple years now where you have, you know,
11 several years of data, what can you tell us about how
12 the total cost of care has changed for those providers,
13 how their delivery of care has changed? How do you
14 think about the lessons that we can learn from that
15 particular model? Are we seeing the process and
16 investment type changes that we would hope to see on a
17 larger scale if we were actually to get true capitated
18 payments?

19 So on both the cost and on the quality, I don't
20 necessarily anticipate that we would see outcomes
21 changing to some degree, because I think it takes time,
22 but are we seeing the process changes and the
23 investment changes that would then lead to the
24 population health outcomes that we would hope to see in
25 a few years? Can you talk a little bit about that?

1 MR. BORYS: Yeah, I can take a little bit of
2 this one. I don't have a full analysis prepared, but I
3 can speak to what I've heard, so this is third-party,
4 but many of the practices have used the financial
5 resources that come their way through the model to
6 bolster the services that they can provide in their
7 primary care shop.

8 So adding behavioral health for even a day a week,
9 if you can do it with the resources here, helps them
10 provide a more robust point of care. And we've also
11 seen evidence of more group work, diabetic groups
12 getting together, all of which is afforded through what
13 we hope is some additional financial resources, but,
14 more importantly, a different way of being paid for the
15 work that they do. So I think there are some good
16 stories, good examples of the ways that the practices
17 have used the flexibilities afforded under capitation
18 to do some new things.

19 What is also a little bit of a -- we just need to
20 recognize that this is a piece of their business still.
21 So it's not as if we can fully capitate their whole
22 practice, which would be awesome, and then they could
23 really go do some different work. So there still is a
24 little bit of the foot in two canoes issue that we hope
25 to address over time, but, overall, I think, at least

1 what I hear from the provider community participating
2 is this model has been a better way for them to be paid
3 and, and has afforded them some opportunities to do
4 some things they wouldn't have been otherwise able to
5 do in fee-for-service.

6 MS. HOLMES: So I guess I would follow up
7 with stories and anecdotes are great. Is there a plan
8 to do really an evaluation? And I understand that it's
9 not their full practice, their full panel isn't it in
10 it, but, you know, is there a more comprehensive
11 assessment that you're planning on doing?

12 It seems like this is a place where we can really
13 learn a lot and where the experiment is, you know,
14 potentially could be scaled up if we learned what were
15 the successes, what were the obstacles? Did we really
16 see the delivery system reform that we anticipated
17 payment reform would lead to? So is there a plan to do
18 a more comprehensive, really true assessment beyond
19 anecdotes and stories and things like that?

20 MR. BORYS: I think, back to Sara's point
21 before, the position that had to be shelved for budget
22 reasons hinders that, but we can take that back, for
23 sure, and think about how we might explore something
24 with the CPR practices to do such an evaluation.

25 MS. HOLMES: That would be great. I think

1 there's a lot we can learn there.

2 MS. LONER: A more formal evaluation --
3 sorry, Jessica -- this year, but then with Covid coming
4 in, some of the practices said to us, We can't take the
5 time to, you know, go through this data and do the
6 manual extraction that's needed on the quality measures
7 that you're looking at. And so we said to them, We
8 understand. You need to take the time and attention
9 you need to pay attention to your patients.

10 And so that was one of the things for some of the
11 longer term, because, remember, there's been only a
12 handful of practices that have really been in this
13 since the creation. Most of our growth is going to be
14 happening next year, so we have to take it from the
15 framework of looking at those that have been in it the
16 longest and what have been some of the intentional
17 changes that they've made. And, again, it was planned
18 for this year, but it requires the practices to do some
19 heavy lifting, and it just didn't seem the time to ask
20 practices to do any more heavy lifting to do this
21 evaluation component of it.

22 So it's something that's certainly been on our
23 mind and that we want to revisit when practices feel
24 like there's maybe a little bit more predictability in
25 their life and they're not worrying about closing their

1 doors. So and I'm sure you get that. I'm sure you've
2 heard that.

3 MS. HOLMES: Understandable. I do. I just
4 think that's that a unique opportunity to do some kind
5 of analysis, you know, three years before they joined,
6 three years after they joined, what are we seeing? How
7 is it changing? Because we're relying on this, you
8 know, theory and some evidence from other places,
9 right, that payment reform leads to delivery reform.
10 We have a little bit of an example here. Is it working
11 or not, I think, is really important.

12 Vicki, you had talked about the need to start
13 acting like a system of care to be successful, and I
14 could not possibly agree more with that statement, and
15 I think, you know, OneCare is uniquely positioned to
16 help move the state towards a more collaborative system
17 of delivery, uniquely positioned because you are the
18 network of most of the providers in the state. You
19 know, people think of OneCare as this separate entity.
20 It really is, as you've said, all the providers, not
21 all, a lot of the providers in the state across the
22 care continuum.

23 So you are that network of providers. Those
24 providers, your providers, have jointly agreed to be
25 accountable for cost of care and quality, and you have

1 the data and analytics to highlight where we might have
2 overutilization, where we might have underutilization,
3 where low-value care is being delivered, where
4 high-cost care might be better delivered elsewhere.
5 You have all the tools, you have all the people, and
6 you have the incentives in the sense that everybody has
7 jointly agreed to be accountable.

8 So I'm wondering how -- you know, we're doing a
9 lot of work with our hospitals right now on
10 sustainability planning to start to think about how
11 hospitals can, can imagine their service lines in this
12 future value-based world, right? They all have service
13 lines right now that are reflective of a
14 fee-for-service environment. We're shifting to a
15 value-based environment, as we all know.

16 So how can OneCare help the hospitals in its
17 network, right, the hospitals that are already in its
18 network, for which it has the data and the analytics
19 and the tools to help them think about optimizing their
20 service lines, expanding transportation, expanding
21 referrals between hospitals so that we can make sure
22 that we are all ready for, you know, value-based
23 payment but, more importantly, so patients have access
24 to the highest quality care at the most appropriate
25 setting at the lowest cost?

1 What is the -- how do you envision OneCare's role
2 in, in making this all happen? How much influence can
3 you have?

4 MS. LONER: So, you know, I really think it
5 comes down to being able to, you know, apply those
6 incentives and to apply that accountability in a more
7 broad way, and we also have to think about, like,
8 what's the effect, too, of all the different moving
9 parts on, Is it better to be in value-based care,
10 right, and that's not just kind of a OneCare decision,
11 or, Do I do better financially by just churning out
12 fee-for-service? Because some providers do a lot
13 better just by working on fee-for-service payment,
14 right, and they can't imagine going to a different
15 world.

16 And so I think our job and what we've heard from
17 our network over this last year is, Tell us where we
18 need to do better. Like, we're no longer in a place
19 where the ACO is developing priorities and we'll do
20 them, you know, we'll focus on them, but we'll also
21 have our own core set of priorities that we want to
22 focus on.

23 They're really at a point, too, that they want to
24 be able to narrow their focus and see the opportunities
25 of where they can do better, and, you know, it's, I

1 can't, I can't say with more, like, enthusiasm, like,
2 how incredible it is that we have this network of
3 providers who sit around the table and talk about how
4 skilled nursing might be impacting the patient care,
5 and they're literally sitting at the same table, well,
6 maybe not now literally, but they're in the virtual
7 room together. Like, that's incredible just in and of
8 itself.

9 Providers before were only talking about what
10 impacted their own revenue stream. They weren't
11 talking about how what they're doing is impacting one
12 another, and that's because we're changing the
13 incentives, right? Fee-for-service incentivized you to
14 just care about what you were doing in your facility,
15 versus value-based care that says kind of all boats
16 rise and fall together. And so, if we're going to be
17 taking on collective risk for our community, we have to
18 be able to think a little bit differently.

19 So the shorter answer is I think the data and
20 reporting are really kind of spotlighting, I think
21 somebody called it, where those opportunities are and
22 then seeing what kind of tools and resources they might
23 need to really be able to drive those home in a
24 meaningful way.

25 MS. HOLMES: Well, I think the HSA-level

1 analysis that you all mentioned earlier that's going to
2 look at cost and quality differences and variations and
3 having those conversations, I think, is a huge step in
4 the right direction, and I applaud that, because we do
5 know there's variation.

6 So my last question, I know it's shocking, but so
7 many people already asked so many of the good
8 questions. So I just wanted to ask a little bit about
9 participation. I did notice a drop in specialists and
10 continuum providers, and I wondered if you could speak
11 to that. This is a small 5,000-foot question, but I am
12 curious. And do you do exit surveys to find out why
13 providers who were once in the network are choosing to
14 exit the network? What can we learn?

15 MS. LONER: I think one of the probably
16 largest areas where we see providers exiting is those
17 specialist providers and that are not part of a larger
18 health care system, so just automatically come in
19 because their parent organization has joined the ACO,
20 and I think what we've struggled is the ACO is really
21 kind of primary care focused. There are specific core
22 accountabilities that we had, and specialists, by their
23 nature, are specialists. They have many different
24 things that they're thinking about and delivering on,
25 and there's just not that many models we can create for

1 the small number of specialists that we had, and, you
2 know, there's only so much money to go around too.

3 So they have to think about, in this value-based
4 care, is that quality incentive they're getting from
5 being part of OneCare really worth it to be part of a
6 value-based care system or not. So I think that's one
7 of the struggles we've had with specialists is, by
8 nature, they're specialists, and they do a lot of
9 different things, and our core programs don't really
10 focus necessarily on their particular specialty.

11 MS. HOLMES: Are there data analytics that
12 would entice them to join in the sense that, you know,
13 one of the things that we talk about is, you know, if
14 you're an individual provider, you don't have the
15 resources to build the analytical system to be able to,
16 you know, understand your outcomes for your patients,
17 but being a part of an ACO, you can, you can benefit
18 from that infrastructure. So, for specialists and some
19 of these other providers that may not have the
20 financial incentive to join, are there data analytics
21 tools and other things that the ACO can offer that
22 would entice them?

23 MS. BARRY: I think, just to take a swing at
24 that, for some of the larger specialty groups which
25 tend to be affiliated with hospitals, they've taken

1 advantage of some of the data and analytics to ask some
2 really interesting questions. I don't recall us
3 receiving that type of outreach from some of the
4 smaller independent specialty groups.

5 And I will just say I was a part of many, many
6 conversations in 2019 and into 2020 where we tried to
7 figure out some commonalities where we could identify
8 some core metrics that, regardless of specialty, might
9 make sense or at least for a subset, and that was a lot
10 of hours we won't ever recover, and we really didn't
11 get to a place other than to say it's unique.

12 And so you can start to think differently about
13 referral patterns and, you know, E-consult models and
14 things like that that can be very valuable, but we came
15 back to needing to focus on primary care as the
16 cornerstone of the model, saying that those challenges
17 with specialty care might be something we need to
18 tackle further down the road.

19 MS. LONER: I had, Jessica, early on met with
20 a couple small cardiologist practice, independents,
21 and, you know, their specialty area, even within
22 cardiology, was, you know, very narrow, so the data
23 that we could provide to them on a handful of their
24 patients just didn't make it worth their -- not that
25 they didn't think that the work we were doing was good.

1 It just wasn't a value add to their particular
2 practice.

3 MS. HOLMES: All right. Those are my
4 questions. I'm going to turn it back to Kevin, who
5 does get to wrap it up for us. Thank you.

6 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Thank you, Jess. Tom, I'm
7 going to start with a couple of expense questions and
8 go from there. A couple years ago, the legislature did
9 change the way a billback is calculated, and you
10 certainly should have seen a significant increase
11 between '19 and '20. There are no changes that I'm
12 aware of that would change that from '20 to '21.

13 So is this a timing issue? Had you incorrectly
14 budgeted for '20 and so it shows up as a significant
15 increase for '21, or what, what's driving that?

16 MR. BORYS: Part of it's that our fiscal
17 years are asynchronous. We're on the calendar year,
18 and, if I understand correctly, the billback's on the
19 state fiscal year, so that's a piece of it. We also
20 just have a schedule from maybe a year or two back that
21 we relied upon for the estimate here. So, if there's
22 more up-to-date information, I'd be happy to see it.

23 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Well, I think that because
24 next year's budget hasn't been approved yet, but
25 knowing that, all across state government, it's going

1 to be less than probably this past year's budget, that
2 you should assume that there will not be an increase in
3 what you were billed for this year to next year.

4 MR. BORYS: Great.

5 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: So I don't know if the
6 number that you were using there is the actual number
7 you were billed this year, but that would be probably
8 your best-case approximation for next year.

9 MR. BORYS: Great, thank you.

10 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: So on, let's move to
11 occupancy costs. Who owns the building that you're in?

12 MR. BORYS: It's a leased property.

13 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Who owns it?

14 MS. BARRY: A company called Apple Bay.

15 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay. Are you in a
16 sublease?

17 MR. BORYS: I'd have to look at the technical
18 nature of this arrangement. It's leased by UVM Medical
19 Center, then we occupy the space, but whether it
20 technically is classified as a sublease, I'm not quite
21 sure.

22 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Well, Tom, you mentioned
23 that most people are working remotely, and we've seen
24 throughout the hospital budget process that we've heard
25 repeatedly that some people may continue to work

1 remotely, and it may result in a reduction in the
2 amount of space that's necessary. Have you had any
3 conversations about reducing your footprint?

4 MS. BARRY: We actively have had
5 conversations both with our staff and leaders around
6 what the model could look like, as well as thinking
7 about the real estate expense. Our, we are in a window
8 over the next months where we will be renegotiating
9 that space, and we're looking at all sorts of options
10 right now, including how we could reduce costs.

11 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Great. You talked about
12 the increase in salary and benefits, and so I want to
13 focus a little bit on total compensation for a second
14 in a year where many organizations have put in freezes
15 and, in some cases, cuts even, and you talked at the
16 start of the pandemic about having to make cuts.
17 What's the average percentage increase for your
18 personnel from '20 to '21 that you've factored into
19 this budget, and when would that increase take effect?

20 MS. LONER: 2 percent, right, Tom, next year?
21 Next year, 2 percent.

22 MR. BORYS: Yeah.

23 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: When you say next year, are
24 we talking January 1?

25 MS. LONER: Yeah, that's our calendar year.

1 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay. And is that across
2 the board, are there some anomalies in there?

3 MS. LONER: It's just what we've factored in.
4 Should be across the board.

5 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay, okay. I just want to
6 ask one follow-up question on occupancy costs, and,
7 Sara, you seem to have the best handle on this. How
8 far into the future are you locked into the current
9 status?

10 MS. BARRY: April of '21.

11 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: April of '21? Okay, great.

12 MS. BARRY: In conversations right now.

13 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay. OneCare Vermont was
14 formed to try to create and actually achieve some
15 incredible goals and to benefit a lot of different
16 individuals, and I would put the different, if we're
17 going to use the bucket scenario, the different
18 beneficiaries into three buckets. I would say the most
19 important bucket from my viewpoint is consumers, but
20 the other two buckets that I see are providers and
21 payers.

22 Looking backwards, what do you think is the single
23 most important achievement that your organization has
24 achieved to benefit each one of those buckets? And you
25 can start with whichever one you prefer.

1 MS. LONER: I would say, Kevin, by the fact
2 that we had over 2,000 providers participating with
3 over 288,000 Vermonters attributed, that's a pretty
4 significant job we've done, and, when I say "we", I
5 mean the, the providers that are part of OneCare. I
6 don't mean OneCare centrally.

7 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Yeah, I acknowledge that,
8 Vicki. I'm just trying to pinpoint what you think for
9 each of those categories what was the single most
10 important thing that OneCare did for the consumer, that
11 OneCare did for the provider, that OneCare did for the
12 payer?

13 MR. BORYS: I think there's actually quite a
14 long list here, but I'll go with what comes to mind
15 first, and I don't like to speak for anybody else, but
16 I'll tackle the payers first. I try to put myself in
17 the shoes of the payer pretty often. Why would they
18 partner with OneCare for this work? And the risk
19 transfer is the answer, that all, all health care
20 insurers have essentially a budget in some way or
21 another. It's either a big federal budget, or it's
22 their own budget funded by premiums.

23 Without this relationship, they have health care
24 cost risk. If health care claims go up, they have to
25 eat that in some way or another or go back to the

1 legislature for more money. The ability to offload
2 some of that health care cost risk and the risk
3 management activities to an ACO is incredibly valuable.
4 If I were on the payer side, that is something I would
5 be engaged in as much as I can to stabilize my own
6 business, to stabilize my own financial paradigm. So,
7 from the payer standpoint, I think that's a really
8 important one is that, just like we say it helps to
9 stabilize health care revenues for the providers, it
10 does the same thing on the other side for the payers.

11 For providers I think the list is, is long of what
12 we've done for them. In the financial space, really,
13 the amount that we've been able to invest in front-line
14 providers to, to focus on value-based care activities,
15 ACO activities over the last few years, is tremendous.
16 I just can't underscore -- somebody's voicemail.

17 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: If you could mute yourself,
18 that would be great.

19 MR. BORYS: So, from the financial standpoint
20 on the provider side, the amount of financial
21 investment to make these changes is pretty incredible
22 when you add it up over the last few years.

23 And then consumers, this one is very much there,
24 but it's a kind of a by extension. OneCare, we don't
25 sit face-to-face with the consumers on a day-to-day

1 basis, but what we try to do is give those who do, the
2 front-line providers, financial resources, tools, data,
3 best practice information to help them more effectively
4 treat the patient in a wholistic way.

5 And does that, is that obvious for a consumer?
6 Maybe sometimes it is. Maybe sometimes it isn't. But
7 I think that is a really important thing that we've
8 done over the last few years is really get the
9 providers to start thinking about population health,
10 value-based health, and that stands to benefit
11 consumers directly.

12 MS. BARRY: If I could just add to that last
13 bucket on consumers with a couple of really tangible
14 things as well, you know, I think our care coordination
15 program and the fact that more than 800 care
16 coordinators that, in working with individuals across
17 the state, they would not wear a OneCare badge; they
18 would represent their organization of whatever type,
19 and so it might be not be completely recognizable to
20 the consumer, but it's there, and it's tangible, and
21 it's creating real relationships and real value.

22 Similarly, I think the laser focus on quality of
23 care in areas where there's real opportunity to improve
24 creates better health care delivery and better outcomes
25 for Vermonters.

1 I think the benefit enhancement waiver, so the
2 classic one there that we've spoken about before, is
3 the skilled nursing facility waiver. That's real value
4 to be able to go directly from your home into a skilled
5 nursing facility if that's what's right for you. And
6 then, finally, making sure that there's more of a focus
7 on prevention and wellness, and so really shifting to
8 that true view of population health, not just acute
9 care, I think, will result in tremendous value from
10 consumers' perspectives.

11 MS. LONER: I think that most of it -- I'd
12 also just like to add on top of this. I mean, the two
13 big things that the ACO is trying to accomplish is
14 delivery reform changes and payment reform changes. So
15 everything that Tom and Sara had mentioned fits into
16 those two buckets, and, really, when you do that right,
17 everybody benefits from it. Patients benefit from it.
18 Providers benefit from it. Insurers benefit from it as
19 well. And so that's, that's the work of the ACO.

20 And this isn't, like, ACOs aren't a new thing.
21 ACOs are nationally recognized, and that's why they are
22 the reform vehicle that Medicare has chosen, and so I
23 think it comes back to the point that Vermont's not
24 unique in forming an ACO, that this is something that
25 the federal government has recognized as the right

1 vehicle to move health care and delivery reform
2 programs.

3 I think the one thing that is very unique to
4 Vermont is, because of the participants in OneCare
5 willing to take on financial risk, we've been able to
6 continue eight-plus million dollars in funding of
7 state-led reform programs, such as the Blueprint and
8 supports and services at home. That's not something
9 that's offered in any other state.

10 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: So, as a follow-up to this
11 question, if you take a look at what you've already
12 achieved, looking forward to your '21 budget, what do
13 you think is the most important goal that you could
14 achieve that would benefit these different buckets,
15 consumers, providers, and payers? What do you hope
16 will improve upon or be done differently in '21 that
17 will add great value?

18 MS. BARRY: I can start from the bottom up,
19 kind of the reverse direction. With consumers, I think
20 it's a laser focus on our care coordination program,
21 and, as I spoke to earlier in kind of the up-front part
22 of that program, it's using our data and our learning
23 to hone in on where we might have gaps in identifying
24 and appropriately outreaching some subgroups of
25 individuals at high risk, and then, on the other end of

1 the spectrum, really starting to understand more about
2 how to successfully graduate individuals from that
3 program but not drop them off a cliff, so figuring out
4 that step-wise approach to continuing to provide
5 supports but also transitioning people to independence.

6 For the provider level, I think it's really
7 focusing on the data and analytics, the spotlights and
8 insights that we've been talking about throughout our
9 conversations today, and so that it's not about the
10 quantity of data available to providers, but really the
11 quality of data that can drive that decision making and
12 that action very quickly. And then, Tom, I might turn
13 it to you for the payer one.

14 MR. BORYS: Well, I think the, the one area,
15 that last one you mentioned benefits everybody, all the
16 different stakeholder groups. In 2021 I think we have
17 to have and find the capacity to go deeper with our
18 analytics to help the providers understand what can
19 they do differently, what are their areas of
20 opportunity, and that's not easy work, but, to me,
21 that's, if we're successful in that in 2021, we should
22 see better coordinated care for those, those consumers
23 who need it. We should see good total cost of care
24 performance, and, frankly, that benefits both providers
25 in shared savings, and it starts to benefit the payers

1 through more stable health care costs. So, to me,
2 that's the main area of focus is making sure that we
3 can really serve our providers and help them do well in
4 this model as priority 1-A.

5 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Tom, I'm not sure if it was
6 Slide 2 or Slide 3 that you put up, that had a very big
7 breakdown of, of the buckets of the dollars, and you
8 had the administrative costs at 1.1 percent. Directly
9 above that, you had the line "Network Investment
10 Payments". Can you talk to us about what those are?

11 MR. BORYS: I just want to make sure. Do you
12 have the slide number?

13 MS. LONER: I think, Kevin, you're talking
14 about the \$30 million in network investments. Is that
15 what you're talking about, the 2 percent, which is all
16 of our --

17 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Yeah, it was one of the
18 very first slides that you had up on the screen.

19 MS. LONER: Yeah. So that's all of our
20 population health program investments. That's SASH.
21 That's Blueprint. That's the value-based incentive
22 fund, care coordination, patient centered medical home
23 payments, longitudinal care, DULCE. I think there's a
24 whole list of them in there, and that all goes directly
25 out to the provider community. None of that is

1 administrative, although OneCare is the entity that is
2 responsible for designing the programs, evaluating the
3 programs, reporting on the programs in terms of both
4 clinical and fiscal accounting through internal and
5 external audits.

6 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Is there one of those
7 population health programs that you just were wowed by
8 the results on and that you've increased your, your
9 resource allocation to because of that?

10 MS. LONER: I would say we've seen our -- and
11 I'd look to Sara for this, but I think we've seen the
12 most progress, because it's probably one of our longest
13 running programs, in care coordination, and, now that
14 we've started to change the payment model, we've seen
15 the level of engagement in that program go up
16 significantly.

17 MS. BARRY: Yeah, I would agree with that. I
18 also think all the changes we've spoken about in the
19 quality arena, some of the work, early work with
20 longitudinal care is incredibly promising, and we're
21 excited to see where that goes into the next year, but
22 all of that has to be put in the context of a really
23 tight year in 2021 in terms of where we have funding
24 availability, and so we've tried to fund the things
25 that we think have the highest potential.

1 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: And, lastly, the initial
2 seed dollars that were put up by the founders,
3 primarily one founder, how are those treated on your
4 income statement?

5 MR. BORYS: Well, they're, both founders have
6 a base capital contribution effectively that was
7 \$50,000. So it shows up in the equity section. The
8 way that the initial founders' contributions kind of
9 worked in the early formation years of OneCare were
10 that they funded operational costs to help develop the,
11 the organization. So those were spent largely in the
12 early years, the 2014, '15, '16 years, but what remains
13 is that initial capital investment of \$50,000 each as
14 their equal stake in OneCare Vermont.

15 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay. So that's the
16 questions that I had. I'm going to ask staff, before I
17 turn it over to the Health Care Advocate, Alena or
18 Marisa, do you have questions?

19 MS. BERUBE: This is Alena. I have one
20 question -- I feel like they've been pretty robust so
21 far -- if you can hear me. So you explained that this
22 is not a GAAP-based budget, and, as you know, one of
23 our questions is, Can you provide a GAAP-based version
24 of this budget and help crosswalk and help us
25 understand what's in and out of the proposed budget?

1 So we'll look forward to that, but can you talk at a
2 high level some of the flows that occur between OneCare
3 and the founders, in particular, UVM, given the shared
4 services that kind of flow through your organization?

5 MR. BORYS: There's, there's really not a
6 lot, and the, the relationship with UVM Medical Center
7 is basically that they, their PR, or not PR, HR
8 attachment point. So we're all employed by the UVM
9 Medical Center, and then each month they charge OneCare
10 the salary costs of all the employees that work for
11 OneCare, and then we handle that through just regular
12 intercompany transfers.

13 You know, outside of that, we're a pretty
14 independent organization standing on our own two feet,
15 and if we do have a charge or a bill that UVM pays on
16 our behalf -- sometimes they do AP checks for us -- we
17 reimburse UVM through those same means where they say,
18 Yes, we paid this on OneCare's behalf, and it goes
19 through a monthly process that our accounting teams
20 have to settle that up, and then we process those
21 through due to a due from account.

22 MS. LONER: I don't know if the board's
23 aware, but we undergo an annual financial audit by PWC,
24 and all of those audit results from the last couple of
25 years are available on our website.

1 MS. BERUBE: Yeah, that's a condition of the
2 budget order, to share those with the Green Mountain
3 Care Board, so we do look at them, but we are unable to
4 tie those audited financial statements to the proposed
5 budget. So I think that's why we're looking for some
6 additional detail, to understand how what you're
7 proposing here ties to those audited financial
8 statements. Thank you.

9 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Marisa, did you have
10 anything?

11 MS. MELAMED: I do not have additional
12 questions that haven't yet been captured today or in
13 our written questions. Thank you.

14 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Super. So, at this point,
15 I'm going to turn it over to the Health Care Advocate.
16 I'm not sure which one of you is going to be doing the
17 questioning, so whoever.

18 MR. FISHER: I imagine, when I start
19 speaking, my image will pop up on your screen.

20 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Hi, Mike.

21 MR. FISHER: Thank you. Thank you for the
22 presentation, and thank you for the great questions
23 from board members, and I also want to thank OneCare
24 for taking the time to meet with us previously. Was
25 that last week or the week before? Vicki and Sara and

1 Tom, that really did help, help us out to have that
2 time to speak. And then I'll also just say I thank
3 you. I'm looking forward to the opportunity to sit
4 down with your patient advisors in early December in a
5 supportive role to support them and support you with
6 that effort.

7 So I do, I need to ask a -- racial disparities, I
8 do need to steer us towards racial disparities, given
9 the public conversation and given some of what we know
10 from the Department of Health about how racial
11 disparities show up in Vermont's health care landscape,
12 and I don't know whether -- and we are not measuring
13 OneCare in any way on this factor, and I don't know
14 whether OneCare has entertained or would entertain, but
15 I, work in this area, but I think it's something that
16 we all need to focus on, and I would welcome your
17 thoughts about how to address provider practices that
18 lead to racial disparities in our health care system.

19 MS. BARRY: Thanks for the question, Mike.
20 We're actually really excited to be diving into this
21 area more with our provider network. We have some
22 limited demographic data from some payers that we were
23 able to start to take a look at as this national
24 conversation really took center stage, and, and it
25 showed us some really interesting things. I would say

1 nothing that was tremendously disparate from the types
2 of data that the health department would have
3 available.

4 But, more recently, we've had some providers
5 coming to us asking to help look at specific gaps in,
6 let's say, quality performance, so rates of mammography
7 screening or colonoscopy by geography, by racial
8 demographics, etc., and it's starting to show some, you
9 know, potentially provocative things, and so we're just
10 in the early stages right now of providing that back to
11 those groups so that they can have the conversations
12 about how they can develop some programming and maybe
13 some more either targeted outreach in the case of some
14 of those screenings or maybe need to think differently
15 about access to services and how to create more
16 culturally accessible care. But I'm, I'm thrilled by
17 the question and really excited that OneCare can play a
18 small role in that.

19 MS. LONER: And also, Mike, just for your
20 information, because you're going to be meeting with
21 some of our boards and committees, at least our Patient
22 and Family Advisory Committee, we've engaged with a
23 consultant, Steven Graves, to help us to understand how
24 we can do better with our boards and committees and
25 making sure that diversity, equity, and inclusion is a

1 part of our process, so helping us to understand
2 initially where we are with our boards and committees,
3 where there's gaps in opportunities and what some other
4 recommendations that they could provide to help us do
5 better, because we can always do better around this
6 work.

7 And so we have some really engaged board members
8 who have been working very closely with Steven on this,
9 and we're hoping to roll out the initial survey to all
10 of our boards and committees over the next few months
11 and start to look at some of those results in December.
12 So some very initial work, but I think, to your point,
13 really important work.

14 MR. FISHER: Great, thank you. So fixed
15 prospective payments have been celebrated during Covid
16 as an important tool in stabilizing the flow of moneys
17 to providers when people weren't getting care, you
18 know, due to the pandemic when providers were not open
19 for business. For me, this shines a light on an
20 apparent conflict that I want to ask outside of the
21 Covid dynamic or maybe in an aspirational way
22 post-Covid.

23 You've said a few times today that you're a
24 provider organization. In an environment where
25 providers are under financial stress, how do you

1 balance the financial needs of providers and the goals
2 of reducing systemwide costs of care and the costs for
3 consumers? I, I'm playing a little bit with language
4 here. You provided a quote saying that, earlier today,
5 that OneCare is stabilizing Vermont's increasing health
6 care costs.

7 Now, I know nobody is trying to stabilize the
8 increasing health care costs, but providers are under
9 stress, and I have to imagine -- and providers do
10 regularly ask for increases for obvious reasons. So
11 how do you deal with this apparent conflict, and how do
12 you do both, provide a stable stream for providers and,
13 and reduce the costs of care systemwide? Can you do
14 both?

15 MS. LONER: Yeah, I think you can, Mike. I
16 really do. I mean, if you think about the work of the
17 ACO, and I think Tom and Sara both said this earlier,
18 what we're doing is providing predictability to
19 providers and predictability to insurers that should
20 translate longer term right down to the patients that
21 are, or the employers that are purchasing the health
22 care.

23 So, when you go into a contract with an ACO,
24 you're locking into a fixed amount of money, and
25 regardless of how many services are rendered, everybody

1 can know that that, that budget is in place for the
2 rest of the year, and so I think that's one of the real
3 values. When we think about the all-payer model and
4 the budget process we're going through this year, when
5 OneCare accepts these total costs of care targets with
6 the payers, we're saying, This is going to be the cost,
7 so we're locking in the savings.

8 So I think that's, you know, one of the questions
9 that asks all the time is like, Where is your return on
10 investment? We're locking in the savings for health
11 care right up front. So, if there is excess savings or
12 excess loss, sorry, then that is borne by the providers
13 and so that there still is that predictability for the
14 payers at the end.

15 MR. FISHER: So forgive me. I, you know, I'm
16 coming at this from the, the consumer's perspective who
17 is, who's facing -- I don't have to go through the
18 litany. We know what is happening for Vermont
19 consumers and Vermont small businesses and insurance
20 rates. You know, we don't focus it in front of this
21 board often, but the, the increasing costs for Medigap
22 plans, the number of Vermont Medicare recipients who
23 don't have Medigap or Advantage and the problems
24 associated with that.

25 Vermonters face tremendous costs when they get

1 care, and, and that, that provides a -- well, maybe
2 I'll ask it this way, and maybe I've asked this
3 question before. So forgive me. Is the consumer
4 affordability challenge as much a growing risk or
5 substantial, as much of a risk as I describe to your
6 efforts here?

7 MS. LONER: I think that's a kind of like a
8 "depends" question, Mike, because it depends on how
9 much of the spend is actually running through the ACO,
10 and it also depends on what the rest of the nation and
11 the country does with value-based care, because, as
12 we've discussed today, a lot of these contracts or
13 payers don't work through Vermont's all-payer model.
14 So I think it's both a federal and a state approach to
15 the affordability question that you're asking.

16 MR. FISHER: All right. I'll leave it, I'll
17 leave it with just the statement that we, in my world I
18 hear too often people not being able to get the care
19 they need, because they can't afford the patient share,
20 and that, to me, crosses paths directly with what we're
21 trying to do here.

22 So, so I presume we're all in agreement that it
23 will be impossible to pull apart -- maybe this is a --
24 Covid savings or reduced costs due to Covid-related
25 reductions in care for 2020 and that it would be next

1 to impossible to draw any conclusions for 2020 about
2 impacts of OneCare Vermont or the all-payer model. I
3 presume we're all in agreement about that, but, I, I
4 need to ask that, and then also extend it.

5 We, we don't know exactly what's going to happen
6 in 2021, but on some level we are seeing, I believe we
7 will see a reduction in people, people's ability to get
8 the care they need due to the Covid pandemic. How do
9 you pull that apart from your efforts and your efforts
10 to save money?

11 MS. LONER: Tom, do you want to talk a little
12 bit about the work that you'd be doing with the finance
13 teams and the actuaries? Because it is a pretty
14 complicated question, Mike. I don't know that we have
15 all the answers, but that's something we're certainly
16 concerned about as well.

17 MR. BORYS: Yeah, I think the most important
18 thing from my perspective is to stay on the value-based
19 care path. That, that, to me, is the beginning of all
20 the good work that happens thereafter, and, you know,
21 we're a population health company, largely. We're
22 trying to help improve the health of the population in
23 spirit of reduced health care cost growth. It's
24 important that we sustain that.

25 Next year is, probably has more uncertainty than

1 we've ever faced as a society, and the one thing I'm
2 confident in is that we can't go backwards and go back
3 to a volume-based reimbursement model. That doesn't
4 serve anybody from consumers on up to the state or the
5 federal government. So that, to me, is the most
6 important thing right now is that we stay in
7 value-based care, we keep working together as a health
8 system to improve the health of the population.

9 I trust you when you say that the, the patient
10 share costs are increasing. So one of the strategies
11 to address that is to improve the health of the
12 population so the health care that they need is less
13 and, therefore, the cost on them is less. That's not
14 going to be an overnight solution by any means, but it
15 just all goes back to the importance of staying on this
16 value-based care track, continuing to work together to
17 improve population health.

18 MR. FISHER: And I don't disagree one bit.
19 I'm just, I'm not suggesting a change in direction.
20 I'm just recognizing it's going to be hard to measure
21 what we've done, certainly, for 2020 and, I, I believe,
22 for 2021 as well.

23 MR. BORYS: I agree.

24 MR. FISHER: A few people have asked about
25 your wage and fringe increase on Slide 26, and maybe

1 I'll ask if, if afterward you could provide a little
2 bit. On Slide 26 you show a 17 percent, 17.8 percent
3 increase from '20 to '21, and you, and you show, and
4 you note that that includes lifting the hiring freeze,
5 restoration of compensation, and I presume, apropos of
6 Chair Mullin's question, it also may include the 2
7 percent increase for the, you know, for the pay raise
8 over the years.

9 It would be really helpful -- well, then I'll also
10 note that, in the budget narrative on Table 4, you list
11 that same number, one million
12 four-hundred-seventy-some, for, with a tag that says
13 it's restoration of COVID-19 compensation cuts. It
14 would be helpful to be able to pull those two or three
15 dynamics apart, how much of that increase is
16 restoration of, of compensation, how much of it is wage
17 increase from year to year, and how much of it is
18 lifting the hiring freeze, and I don't expect you to be
19 able to answer that question here.

20 MR. BORYS: Yeah, I do not have that
21 breakdown at my, at the ready, but we can certainly
22 supply it.

23 MR. FISHER: Case management, Sara, it looks
24 like 10 percent of the population is considered
25 high-risk and 6 percent is considered very high-risk

1 and that you have a goal of an average of 15 percent
2 across all the populations, which I believe, you know,
3 if my math is right, that's 2 percent, 2.4 percent of
4 your total population.

5 When you break apart the different payers, it
6 looks to us like it's 16 percent of the Medicare and
7 Medicaid population and 3 percent of the Blue Cross
8 Blue Shield Vermont population or less than half a
9 percent for Blue Cross, who is getting this intensive
10 case management, as opposed to 2.5 percent of the
11 Medicare and Medicaid. What's going on?

12 MS. BARRY: So, Mike, I think, just, in all
13 those numbers you've displayed, which were all accurate
14 numbers to my, you know, best of my hearing, right
15 there in and of itself, it describes the complexity.
16 So, when we started investigating how to build on and
17 expand some of the early concepts that the Blueprint
18 was testing, we looked at other ACOs. We looked at
19 other insurance companies, and we came out with a huge
20 swath of, you know, a count of a certain number of
21 people at the low end all the way up to, you know, some
22 situations where maybe 40 percent of a population was
23 being care managed.

24 And, in conversations across our provider
25 community, I remember a couple of things very clearly.

1 One was that we needed to have a wholistic population
2 health view, and that's how we came up with that
3 high-risk 10 percent category, whereas a pretty typical
4 insurance-based model would just pay attention to the
5 very high-risk, and that was really recognizing the
6 complexity of the physical and mental health challenges
7 that often occur simultaneously, and then you add in
8 the, the social, economic issues, and, and, you know,
9 those challenges become even more complex and tangled
10 together.

11 So it was a great opportunity for us to look at
12 community-based care. We had to set some early
13 targets, and in those days, remember, we were, like,
14 starting from zero. So we set 15 percent of that high-
15 and very high-risk population as a goal. Again, not
16 saying that that was the permanent goal that we were
17 headed for, but that was at an all-payer level where we
18 wanted to be, and then we started to explore and put
19 pressure on the system to try to meet those goals, and
20 so, as we reported, we now have over 4,000 individuals
21 in care management hitting that goal.

22 And so the next question becomes, Well, is there
23 more need, or is there need to refine and become more
24 specific in where those supports are? And I think it's
25 a little bit of everything there, but what we've

1 recognized is that there are still some individuals
2 that could really benefit, in our opinion, that need
3 more outreach and support. For example, it might be
4 looking at a nuanced subpopulation of those that are
5 high utilizers of the emergency department and have,
6 let's say, comorbid conditions affecting their mental
7 and their physical health, and so can we be more
8 targeted and more specific in the ways that we support
9 our providers to do that outreach?

10 The differential engagement rates that you were
11 highlighting do exist, and we think that underneath
12 that is the fact that, when you look at the risk
13 profile of different populations, they're inherently
14 different, and so we try to target some of those early
15 goals to align with those risk profiles. I don't think
16 -- I've not come across the science that will tell us
17 an exact number for any subpopulation.

18 I think it's always going to be a process to learn
19 and improve, and we need to align that with where we
20 can start to have enough kind of duration in care
21 coordination that we really get a sense of the outcomes
22 and who can best benefit from this type of program, as
23 opposed to something, say, that one of the insurers
24 might still be offering, which is a very
25 disease-specific program, say, for a rare condition or

1 a genetic condition, where our community-based care
2 coordinators don't have that expertise.

3 And so we, together with the payers, have said,
4 Hey, you keep that population. You either directly
5 have those highly skilled, you know, case managers, or
6 you're contracting with somebody. And so that's an
7 example of they wouldn't be counted kind of in our data
8 that we're reporting out, but it's a way that we're
9 working collaboratively with, in particular, the
10 commercial payers to make sure that we have those
11 wholistic services.

12 MR. FISHER: So, so I heard a few things
13 there, but a piece of it, and what I suspected when I
14 asked the question, the, the relative health difference
15 between the public payer population and the commercial
16 payer population is, is that different?

17 MS. BARRY: It can be that different, yes.

18 MR. FISHER: Yeah, yeah. Thank you. Lastly,
19 I wanted to thank you for putting up Fred's story. I
20 think those kinds of stories are important, and, and I
21 can't help, because, you know, I've spent almost 30
22 years as a front-line social worker, to say it
23 recognizes there's a long history of people coming
24 together to organize to provide better care for people
25 that really improves, saves lives, and saves a lot of

1 money.

2 And so I think that it's really important that
3 you're a part of that effort and also to say out loud
4 that, you know, we bump into absolutely crazy problems
5 in our system that, whether it be getting people access
6 to dentures, you know, the, the misnomer of affordable
7 dentures, and/or the absolute ridiculous challenge of
8 getting people dependable access to diabetic supplies.
9 Nobody gets continuous glucose monitors for fun. Why
10 do we make them jump through so many hoops to get them?
11 Well, because they cost a lot of money. And so I look
12 forward to a day when, when we fix those kinds of
13 problems to be able to get people the care they need,
14 and so thank you.

15 MS. LONER: Us too. Thank you, Mike, for
16 saying that.

17 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Thank you, Mike. At this
18 point, I'm going to open it up for public comment.
19 Does any member of the public wish to comment on the
20 budget presentation from OneCare Vermont?

21 MS. ARANOFF: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair.
22 This is Susan Aranoff from the Vermont Developmental
23 Disabilities Council.

24 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Hi, Susan.

25 MS. ARANOFF: Hi. So I just have a couple of

1 preliminary questions for Vicki and team. This has to
2 do with Medicaid. As you know, the focus of the
3 council is always on Medicaid. Medicaid pays for the
4 only payer for home- and community-based services that
5 people with disabilities, who are Vermont's largest
6 group of disparately impacted Vermonters, who average
7 two and three chronic conditions and would be really
8 low-hanging fruit for care coordination, etc. So I'm
9 speaking about Medicaid.

10 About five or six weeks ago, we were all gathered
11 for the discussion on primary care, and Julie Wasserman
12 asked Vicki a question about the
13 14-point-something-million-dollar loss in Medicaid, and
14 Vicki said, No, that's going to turn out not to be a
15 loss. That's going to be savings. So my understanding
16 is that now the Medicaid loss is cleared.

17 The point that I want to make is, when, when the
18 board, when OneCare, when everyone talks about
19 predictability for the payers of shifting risk to the
20 payers, what is really missing from this conversation,
21 and it's really more of a comment than a question, is
22 that, when Medicaid overspends by \$14 million in, in
23 the Medicaid ACO, OneCare's only on the hook for some
24 percent of that, 4 percent, whatever the guardrails
25 are.

1 That rest of that overage, that Medicaid
2 expenditure, is paid by the taxpayers of Vermont, those
3 public payers, but, in addition to that, it's money
4 that is not available for home- and community-based
5 services. That money becomes unavailable to serve the
6 Vermonters with disabilities who are only served by
7 these Medicaid-funded programs.

8 So Cory, you know, the Commissioner of DVHA, and
9 others, I've heard the secretary just say this.
10 Medicaid has rightly taken pride in switching a lot to
11 value-based payments. There's not really a need for an
12 ACO for value-based payments. They've been paying for
13 long-term care with case rates for decades without an
14 ACO in the middle, but, when the ACO starts costing
15 more money than it is benefiting Medicaid
16 beneficiaries, I think someone has got to speak up for
17 Medicaid and say and ask the question, and I hope the
18 Green Mountain Care Board staff can ask this as a
19 breakdown: How are people with disabilities better off
20 as a result of the ACO?

21 DVHA used to do a disability subanalysis on the
22 quality results. So that would be a question. And how
23 is the Medicaid program, as the most reliable payer, as
24 the one with the steadiest increase in scale, as the
25 one who started out with the, the only one with an

1 additional admin fee, how is the Medicaid program
2 better off for its participation?

3 And then my direct question to Vicki, but it
4 seemed like she rejected the premise of my question, is
5 I wanted to know what changed in the Medicaid results
6 between six weeks ago and today so that what was going
7 to, when Julie Wasserman asked about the losses in
8 Medicaid, you said those were going to be savings, had
9 anything changed?

10 And I'll leave it at that. We will be submitting
11 written comments, but I hope that the board, in its
12 follow-up questions, could dig down a little deeper on
13 the impact this is having on the Medicaid program
14 overall and on people with disabilities in particular.
15 Thank you.

16 MS. BERUBE: Kevin, this is Alena. Can I
17 just add one thing? So I believe we'll be going
18 through the 2019 financial results by payer in the
19 coming weeks, so we'll have more discussion of drivers
20 of those results at that time.

21 MS. LONER: And, if I could just say for the
22 record, I don't believe I ever said that there was
23 going to be savings. We were still discussing with
24 Medicaid at the time what those numbers would look
25 like. I did say there was going to be savings in the

1 Medicare program and that, overall, when we looked at
2 the ACO programs, there were savings opportunities.

3 MS. ARANOFF: We can play the tape. Both
4 Julie and I have listened to it, because we were really
5 surprised by that, Vicki. We've been watching that
6 Medicaid number in the 52 Points of Light all year, and
7 so we were trying to get the attention of legislators,
8 you know, someone please pay attention to what is
9 happening in Medicaid. So, you know, we could both
10 listen to the tape, but I'm pretty sure that how I'm
11 reporting it is how it was portrayed, and I look
12 forward again to a discussion of the financial results.
13 As I said when the quality results were discussed, Mr.
14 Chair or a member, I really would welcome a discussion
15 of the financial results, especially in the Medicaid.
16 Thank you.

17 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: Okay. Other members of the
18 public? Other members of the public? Hearing none, I
19 wish to thank team OneCare for their patience through
20 all the questions today. We've learned a lot, and you
21 have a, a large set of written questions that have been
22 forwarded to you that I'm sure are probably more than
23 you wish to bear, but we look forward to reading those
24 responses and continuing to figure out how we can move
25 forward to better the lives of Vermonters. So thank

1 you.

2 Is there any other old business to come before the
3 board? Hearing none, is there any new business to come
4 before the board? Hearing none, is there a motion to
5 adjourn?

6 MR. PELHAM: So moved.

7 MS. USIFER: Second.

8 CHAIRMAN MULLIN: It's been moved and
9 seconded to adjourn. All those in favor signify by
10 saying "aye". Aye. Those opposed signify by saying
11 "nay". Thank you, everyone. Have a great rest of the
12 day.

13

14 (Whereupon at 2:34 p.m. the hearing was adjourned.)

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

